Ticker: NACP - NYSE ARCA

Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF

Ticker: WOMN – NYSE ARCA

Each, a series of Tidal Trust III (formerly, named Impact Shares Trust I)

April 9, 2024

Supplement to the Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated October 27, 2023, as supplemented

The following sub-section of the "How to Buy and Sell Shares" section of the Prospectus is hereby replaced, solely with respect to the YWCA and NAACP Funds, with the following:

Transaction Fees

Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$300 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. A Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Tidal or Impact Shares, as the case may be, has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of a Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction.

The following sub-section of the "Purchase and Redemption of Shares" section of the SAI is hereby replaced, solely with respect to the YWCA and NAACP Funds, with the following:

Transaction Fees.

Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$300 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. The Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Tidal and/or Impact Shares has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of the Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction. In addition, purchasers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for payment of the costs of transferring securities to the Fund and redeemers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for the costs of transferring securities from the Fund. Investors who use the services of a broker or other financial intermediary may pay fees for such services.

Ticker: NACP – NYSE ARCA

Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF

Ticker: WOMN - NYSE ARCA

Each, a series of Tidal Trust III (formerly, named Impact Shares Trust I)

March 25, 2024

Supplement to the Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated October 27, 2023, as supplemented

The second paragraph under the subsection "Commission Rates; Brokerage and Research Services" in the SAI is revised to read as follows:

In addition, the investment advisory agreements between the Trust and Tidal authorize Tidal, on behalf of each Fund, in selecting brokers or dealers to execute a particular transaction and in evaluating the best overall terms available, to consider the brokerage and research services (as those terms are defined in Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) provided to the relevant Fund and/or other accounts over which Tidal or its affiliates exercise investment discretion. The fees under the investment advisory agreement relating to the Funds will not be reduced by reason of a Fund receiving brokerage and research services. Such services include analyses and reports regarding issuers, industries, economic trends, portfolio strategy, and may effect securities transactions and perform certain functions related thereto. In addition, such services may include advice concerning the advisability of investing in, purchasing or selling securities and the availability of particular securities or buyers or sellers of securities. The research services received from broker-dealers that execute transactions on behalf of a Fund may be useful to Tidal or Impact Shares in servicing the ETFs as well as all of Tidal's of Impact Shares' accounts and not all of these services may be used in connection with the particular Fund or funds generating the commissions. The research services may include qualifying order management systems, portfolio attribution and monitoring services, and computer software and access charges which are directly related to investment research. Consistent with limits established by the Federal securities laws, the Funds may pay broker-dealer commissions for agency transactions that exceed the amount of commissions charged by other broker-dealers in recognition of their research and brokerage services.

The following information included in the Supplement dated March 22, 2024 is hereby replaced with the information below.

The following sub-section of the "How to Buy and Sell Shares" section of the Prospectus is hereby replaced, solely with respect to the YWCA and NAACP Funds, with the following:

Transaction Fees

Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$500 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited inaccordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. A Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Tidal or Impact Shares, as the case may be, has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of a Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction.

The following sub-section of the "Purchase and Redemption of Shares" section of the SAI is hereby replaced, solely with respect to the YWCA and NAACP Funds, with the following:

Transaction Fees.

Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$500 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. The Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Tidal and/or Impact Shares has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of the Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction. In addition, purchasers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for payment of the costs of transferring securities to the Fund and redeemers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for the costs of transferring securities from the Fund. Investors who use the services of a broker or other financial i

Ticker: NACP – NYSE ARCA

Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF

Ticker: WOMN – NYSE ARCA

Each, a series of Tidal Trust III (formerly, named Impact Shares Trust I)

March 22, 2024

Supplement to the Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated October 27, 2023, as supplemented

The following sub-section of the ""How to Buy and Sell Shares" section of the Prospectus is hereby replaced, solely with respect to the YWCA and NAACP Funds, with the following:

Transaction Fees

Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$300 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. A Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Tidal or Impact Shares, as the case may be, has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of a Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction.

The following sub-section of the "Purchase and Redemption of Shares" section of the Statement of Additional Information is hereby replaced, solely with respect to the YWCA and NAACP Funds, with the following:

Transaction Fees.

Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$300 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. The Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Tidal and/or Impact Shares has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of the Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction.

In addition, purchasers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for payment of the costs of transferring securities to the Fund and redeemers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for the costs of transferring securities from the Fund. Investors who use the services of a broker or other financial intermediary may pay fees for such services.

Ticker: NACP - NYSE ARCA

Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF

Ticker: WOMN - NYSE ARCA

Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF

Ticker: OWNS - NYSE ARCA

Each, a series of Impact Shares Trust I

March 20, 2024

Supplement to the Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated October 27, 2023, as supplemented

This Supplement provides new and additional information regarding the Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF, the Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF, and the Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF. This Supplement should be read in conjunction with the above-referenced documents.

Trust Name Change

Effective March 19, 2024, Impact Shares Trust I (the "Trust") changed its name to Tidal Trust III. Its new address will be 234 West Florida Street, Suite 203, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204. All references to the Trust are hereby amended to reflect Tidal Trust III.

Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF - Reorganization Complete

On March 18, 2024, the Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF (the "Affordable Housing Fund"), a series of the Trust, merged into the CCM Affordable Housing MBS ETF, a series of the Quaker Investment Trust. The Affordable Housing Fund liquidated in connection with the reorganization, and shares of such Fund are no longer available for purchase.

IMPACT SHARES TRUST I

Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF Ticker: NACP – NYSE ARCA

January 26, 2024

Supplement to the Summary Prospectus, Prospectus, and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated October 27, 2023, as supplemented

This Supplement provides new and additional information regarding the Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF (the "Fund" or the "Minority ETF"). This Supplement should be read in conjunction with the above-referenced documents.

A Special Meeting of Fund Shareholders (the "Meeting") was held on January 25, 2024, at the office of Impact Shares Corp. ("ISC") located at 5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas, 75225.

At the Meeting, shareholders of the Fund approved the appointment of Tidal Investment LLC ("Tidal") as the investment adviser by approving a new investment advisory agreement between Impact Shares Trust I (the "Trust") and Tidal, and an amendment to the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement among the Trust, Tidal and ISC, on behalf of the Fund.

Effective as of January 29, 2024, the following sections of the Summary Prospectus and statutory Prospectus pertaining to the Fund are hereby replaced with the following:

Portfolio Management

Tidal serves as investment adviser to the Fund and is responsible for overseeing the management and business affairs of the Fund. Impact Shares serves as the investment sub-adviser to the Fund and is responsible for selecting investments for the Fund's portfolio consistent with the Fund's investment objectives, policies, and restrictions. The portfolio managers for the Fund are Ethan Powell of Impact Shares, who has managed the Fund since its inception, and Qiao Duan and Charles Ragauss of Tidal (both responsible for trading execution and trade compliance), who became portfolio managers of the Fund in January 2024.

	Managed the Fund	
Portfolio Manager	Since:	Title
Ethan Powell	July, 2018	President, Impact Shares
Qiao Duan	January, 2024	Portfolio Manager, Tidal
Charles Ragauss	January, 2024	Portfolio Manager, Tidal

The following section of the statutory Prospectus is hereby replaced with the following:

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS

Tidal - Investment Adviser to the Women's ETF and Minority ETF

Tidal Investments LLC ("Tidal") serves as the investment adviser to the Women's ETF and Minority ETF. Tidal, located at 234 West Florida Street, Suite 203, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204, is an SEC-registered investment adviser and a Delaware limited liability company. Tidal was founded in March 2012, and is dedicated to understanding, researching and managing assets within the expanding ETF universe. As of December 31, 2023, Tidal had assets under management of approximately

\$11.3 billion and served as the investment adviser or sub-adviser for 157 registered funds. Under the Tidal Advisory Agreement (as defined below), Tidal has responsibility for overseeing the management and business affairs of the Women's ETF and Minority ETF. Tidal places securities (and financial instrument) trades and selects the broker-dealers to effect those trades on behalf of the Women's ETF and the Minority ETF. In addition, Tidal is responsible for oversight of Impact Shares solely in its capacity as investment sub-adviser to the Women's ETF and Minority ETF.

As of the date of this prospectus, Tidal has no management or oversight responsibilities with respect to the Affordable Housing ETF.

Impact Shares – Sub-Adviser to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF; Investment Adviser to the Affordable Housing ETF

Impact Shares, Corp. ("Impact Shares") serves as the investment sub-adviser to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF and investment adviser to the Affordable Housing ETF. The address of Impact Shares is 5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75225. Impact Shares provides the day-to-day management of each Fund's portfolio of securities and conducting investment research. Organized in February 2014, Impact Shares is registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. Impact Shares is an ETF sponsor and investment manager that is creating a platform for clients seeking maximum social impact with market returns. As of June 30, 2023, Impact Shares had approximately \$190,000,000 in assets under management.

Impact Shares' goal is to build a capital markets bridge between leading nonprofits, investors and corporate America to direct capital and social engagement on societal priorities.

Impact Shares is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). With respect to the Minority ETF and the Women's ETF (the "Equity ETFs"), Impact Shares intends to make charitable contributions to an Equity ETF's relevant Partner Nonprofit equal to the excess, if any, of Impact Shares' fees and profit share with respect to the relevant Equity ETF over Impact Shares' operating expenses and a reserve for working capital. Impact Shares' intent is to provide financial support to further the causes championed by each Partner Nonprofit. Due to the relatively small size of each Equity ETF, Impact Shares' fees and profit share with respect to each Equity ETF have not yet exceeded its related operating expenses. Accordingly, Impact Shares has not yet made any such charitable contributions. There can be no assurance that Impact Shares' fees and profit share with respect to an Equity ETF will exceed operating expenses in the future. For additional information see "Partner Nonprofits," below.

CCM – Sub-Adviser to the Affordable Housing ETF

Impact Shares has engaged a sub-adviser, Community Capital Management, LLC. ("CCM") to provide the day-to-day management of the portfolio of the Affordable Housing ETF. CCM is a registered investment adviser founded in November 1998, with headquarters at 261 N. University Drive, Suite 520, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33324. CCM was originally organized to provide investment advice to other registered investment trusts and separate accounts. As of June 30, 2023, the Sub-Adviser had approximately \$4.2 billion in assets under management.

Portfolio Managers

Minority ETF and Women's ETF – Ethan Powell, of Impact Shares, and Qiao Duan and Charles A. Ragauss, portfolio managers for Tidal, are jointly and primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the Minority ETF and Women's ETF. Ms. Duan and Mr. Raguauss are responsible for trading execution and trade compliance.

Qiao Duan serves as Portfolio Manager at Tidal, having joined the firm in October 2020. From February 2017 to October 2020, she was an execution Portfolio Manager at Exponential ETFs, where she managed research and analysis relating to all Exponential ETF strategies. Ms. Duan previously served as a portfolio manager for the Exponential ETFs from their inception in May 2019 until October 2020. Ms. Duan received a Master of Science in Quantitative Finance and Risk Management from the University of Michigan in 2016 and a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Xiamen University in 2014. She holds the CFA designation.

CFA® is a registered trademark owned by the CFA Institute.

Charles Ragauss, CFA, of Tidal - Minority ETF and Women's ETF

Mr. Ragauss serves as Portfolio Manager at Tidal, having joined Tidal in September 2020. Mr. Ragauss previously served as Chief Operating Officer and in other roles at CSat Investment Advisory, L.P. from April 2016 to September 2020. Previously, Mr. Ragauss was Assistant Vice President at Huntington National Bank ("Huntington"), where he was Product Manager for the Huntington Funds and Huntington Strategy Shares ETFs, a combined fund complex of almost \$4 billion in assets under management. At Huntington, he led ETF development bringing to market some of the first actively managed ETFs. Mr. Ragauss joined Huntington in 2010. Mr. Ragauss attended Grand Valley State University where he received his Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance and International Business, as well as a minor in French. He is a member of both the National and West Michigan CFA societies and holds the CFA designation.

Advisory and Sub-Advisory Agreements

Tidal Advisory Agreement for the Minority ETF

The Trust has entered into an investment advisory agreement with Tidal with respect to the Minority ETF (the "Tidal Advisory Agreement"). Subject to the terms of the Tidal Advisory Agreement, Tidal is responsible for overseeing the management and business affairs of the Minority ETF. Tidal also places securities (and financial instrument) trades on behalf of the Minority ETF and selects the broker-dealers to effect those trades. In addition, Tidal is responsible for general oversight of Impact Shares solely in its capacity as investment sub-adviser to the Minority ETF.

For the services provided to the Minority ETF under the Tidal Advisory Agreement, the Minority ETF pays Tidal an annual unitary fee, payable monthly, at the rate of 0.49% of its average daily net assets. Under a unitary management fee structure, the investment adviser bears all expenses of the Minority ETF (including transfer agency, custody, fund administration, legal, audit and other services) with limited exceptions as set forth in the advisory agreement. Under the Tidal Advisory Agreement the following exceptions apply: interest charges on any borrowings made for investment purposes, dividends and other expenses on securities sold short, taxes, brokerage commissions and other expenses incurred in placing orders for the purchase and sale of securities and other investment instruments, acquired fund fees and expenses, accrued deferred tax liability, distribution fees and expenses paid by the Women's ETF under any distribution plan adopted pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act, and litigation expenses, and other nonroutine or extraordinary expenses.

Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment for the Minority ETF

The Trust and Impact Shares have entered into an amendment to the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement pursuant to which Impact Shares provides sub-advisory services to the Minority ETF (the "Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment"). Subject to the terms of the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment, Impact Shares selects investments for the Minority ETF's portfolio.

For its sub-advisory services to the Minority ETF, Impact Shares is entitled to receive a fee from Tidal, which fee is calculated daily and payable monthly, at an annual rate of 0.02% of the average daily net assets of Minority ETF. However, as Fund Sponsor, Impact Shares may be required to automatically waive all or a portion of its sub-advisory fee. See "Fund Sponsorship Agreement Between Tidal and Impact Shares" below for more information.

Other Contractual Arrangements

Fund Sponsorship Agreement Between Tidal and Impact Shares for the Minority ETF and Women's ETF

Tidal has entered into a fund sponsorship agreement with Impact Shares (the "Fund Sponsorship Agreement") pursuant to which Impact Shares is a sponsor to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF. Every month, unitary management fees for an Equity ETF are calculated and paid to Tidal, and Tidal retains a portion of the unitary management fees from Minority ETF and Women's ETF. After Tidal has recouped a certain level of costs, Tidal has agreed to pay Impact Shares a portion of any remaining profits generated by the unitary management fee for Minority ETF and Women's ETF.

If the amount of the unitary management fees for the Minority ETF and Women's ETF exceeds the combination of: (i) Equity ETF's operating expenses (including the sub-advisory fee payable to Impact Shares under the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment) and (ii) the Tidal-retained amount; that excess amount is considered "remaining profit." In that case, once Tidal has recovered a certain level of costs, Tidal will pay a portion of the remaining profits to Impact Shares. During months when the funds generated by the unitary management fee are insufficient to cover the entire Impact Shares sub-advisory fee, that fee is automatically waived.

The following section of the SAI is hereby replaced with the following:

INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICES

Tidal Investments LLC ("Tidal") serves as the investment adviser to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF. Tidal, located at 234 West Florida Street, Suite 203, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204, is an SEC-registered investment adviser and a Delaware limited liability company. Tidal was founded in and has been managing investment companies since March 2012 and Tidal is dedicated to understanding, researching and managing assets within the expanding ETF universe. As of December 31, 2023, Tidal had assets under management of approximately \$11.3 billion and served as the investment adviser or sub-adviser for 157 registered funds. Under the investment advisory agreement between the Trust and Tidal with respect to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF (the "Tidal Advisory Agreement"), Tidal is responsible for overseeing the management and business affairs of the Minority ETF and Women's ETF. Tidal will place securities (and financial instrument) trades on behalf of the Minority ETF and Women's ETF and select the broker-dealers to effect those trades. Tidal has no management or oversight responsibilities with respect to the Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF (the "Affordable Housing ETF").

Pursuant to an amendment to the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement among Impact Shares, the Trust and Tidal, Impact Shares (the "Sub-Advisory Amendment") serves as the investment sub-adviser to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF and investment adviser to the Affordable Housing ETF. The address of Impact Shares is 5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75225. Impact Shares provides the day-to-day management of each Fund's portfolio of securities and conducting investment research. Organized in February 2014, Impact Shares is SEC-registered investment adviser. Impact Shares is an ETF sponsor and investment manager that is creating a platform for clients seeking maximum social impact with market returns. As of June 30, 2023, Impact Shares had approximately \$190,000,000 in assets under management.

At the Meeting, the shareholders of the Minority ETF approved an investment advisory agreement with Tidal (the "Tidal Advisory Agreement"). The Tidal Advisory Agreement became effective on the same date. Subject to the terms of the Tidal Advisory Agreement, Tidal is responsible for overseeing the management and business affairs of the Minority ETF. Tidal also places securities (and financial instrument) trades on behalf of the Minority ETF and selects the broker-dealers to effect those trades. In addition, Tidal is responsible for general oversight of Impact Shares solely in its capacity as investment sub-adviser to the Minority ETF.

For the services provided to the Minority ETF under the Tidal Advisory Agreement, the Minority ETF pays Tidal an annual unitary fee, payable monthly, at the rate of 0.49% of its average daily net assets. Under a unitary management fee structure, the investment adviser bears all expenses of the Minority ETF (including transfer agency, custody, fund administration, legal, audit and other services) with limited exceptions as set forth in the advisory agreement. Under the Tidal Advisory Agreement, the following exceptions apply: interest charges on any borrowings made for investment purposes, dividends and other expenses on securities sold short, taxes, brokerage commissions and other expenses incurred in placing orders for the purchase and sale of securities and other investment instruments, acquired fund fees and expenses, accrued deferred tax liability, distribution fees and expenses paid by the Minority ETF under any distribution plan adopted pursuant to Rule 12b-1under the 1940 Act, and litigation expenses, and other nonroutine or extraordinary expenses.

The Tidal Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for an initial period of two years, unless sooner terminated. After the initial two-year period, continuation of the Tidal Advisory Agreement from year to year is subject to annual approval by the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. The Tidal Advisory Agreement may be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty (i) by vote of a majority of the Board, (ii) by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Minority ETF, on 60 days' written notice to Tidal, or (iii) by Tidal, on 60 days' written notice to the Trust.

Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment for the Minority ETF

At the Meeting, the shareholders of the Minority ETF approved an amendment to the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement between the Trust and Impact Shares (the "Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment"). The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment became effective on the same date. Subject to the terms of the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment, Impact Shares became the investment sub-adviser to the Minority ETF and, in that capacity, will select investments for the Minority ETF" portfolios consistent with each Equity ETF's investment objectives, policies, and restrictions. In addition, Impact Shares will vote proxies for each of the Minority ETF. Tidal will retain trading responsibilities for the Minority ETF. The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment provides that Impact Shares shall exercise due care and diligence and use the same skill and care in providing its services thereunder as it uses in providing services to other investment companies, accounts and customers, but Impact Shares and its affiliates and their respective agents, control persons, directors, officers, employees, supervised persons and access persons shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by the Impact Shares in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of its duties.

The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment will remain in effect for an initial period of two years, unless sooner terminated. Thereafter, continuation of the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment from year to year is subject to annual approval by the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment may be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty (i) by vote of a majority of the Board, (ii) by vote of a majority of

the outstanding voting securities of the Minority ETF, on 60 days' written notice to Impact Shares, or (iii) by Impact Shares, on 60 days' written notice to Tidal.

For its sub-advisory services to the Minority ETF, Impact Shares is entitled to receive a fee from Tidal, which fee is calculated daily and payable monthly, at an annual rate of 0.02% of the average daily net assets of Minority ETF. However, as Fund Sponsor, Impact Shares may be required to automatically waive all or a portion of its sub-advisory fee. See "Fund Sponsorship Agreement Between Tidal and Impact Shares" below for more information.

Fund Sponsorship Agreement Between Tidal and Impact Shares for the Minority and Women's ETFs

Tidal has entered into a fund sponsorship agreement with Impact Shares (the "Fund Sponsorship Agreement") pursuant to which Impact Shares is a sponsor to the Minority ETF and Women's ETF. Every month, unitary management fees for an Equity ETFs are calculated and paid to Tidal, and Tidal retains a portion of the unitary management fees from Minority ETF and Women's ETF. After Tidal has recouped a certain level of costs, Tidal has agreed to pay Impact Shares a portion of any remaining profits generated by the unitary management fee for Minority ETF and Women's ETF.

If the amount of the unitary management fees for the Minority ETF and Women's ETF exceeds the combination of: (i) Minority and Women's ETF's operating expenses (including the sub-advisory fee payable to Impact Shares under the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment) and (ii) the Tidal-retained amount; that excess amount is considered "remaining profit." In that case, once Tidal has recovered a certain level of costs, Tidal will pay a portion of the remaining profits to Impact Shares. During months when the funds generated by the unitary management fee are insufficient to cover the entire Impact Shares sub-advisory fee, that fee is automatically waived.

If you have questions or need assistance, please contact your financial advisor directly or the Fund toll-free at 1-844-448-3383 (844-GIVE-ETF) or by sending an email request to info@impactetfs.org.

PLEASE RETAIN THIS SUPPLEMENT FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

IMPACT SHARES TRUST I

Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF Ticker: NACP - NYSE ARCA

November 20, 2023

Supplement to the Summary Prospectus, Prospectus, and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated October 27, 2023, as supplemented

This Supplement provides new and additional information regarding the Fund. This Supplement should be read in conjunction with the above-referenced documents.

Impact Shares Corp. ("ISC") is currently the investment adviser to the NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF (the "Fund"). ISC desires to focus on portfolio construction fully and, to allow it to do so, has recommended engaging a new investment adviser, namely, Tidal Investments LLC ("Tidal").

On September 28, 2023, the Board of Trustees of Impact Shares Trust I (the "Board") approved, subject to shareholder approval, the appointment of Tidal as the investment adviser to the Fund pursuant to a new investment advisory agreement (the "Tidal Advisory Agreement"). The Board has also approved, subject to shareholder approval, an amendment to ISC's existing advisory agreement (the "ISC Advisory Amendment").

Shareholders will receive a proxy statement discussing the Board's decision to approve the Tidal Advisory Agreement and the ISC Advisory Amendment, and the Board's recommendation that shareholders of the Fund vote to approve the Tidal Advisory Agreement and the ISC Advisory Amendment at a special meeting of Fund shareholders that will occur on or about January 29, 2024. If approved by shareholders, the Tidal Advisory Agreement and the ISC Advisory Amendment will become effective on or about January 29, 2024.

If you have questions or need assistance, please contact your financial advisor directly or the Fund toll-free at 1-844-448-3383 (844-GIVE-ETF) or by sending an email request to info@impactetfs.org.

PLEASE RETAIN THIS SUPPLEMENT FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

IMPACT SHARES TRUST I

Statement of Additional Information Dated October 27, 2023

	PRINCIPAL U.S.	
<u>FUND</u>	LISTING EXCHANGE	TICKER SYMBOL
Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF	NYSE Arca, Inc	NACP
Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF	NYSE Arca, Inc.	WOMN
Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF	NYSE Arca, Inc.	OWNS

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus. It relates to the prospectus of the Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF (the "Minority ETF"), Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF (the "Women's ETF"), and the Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF (the "Affordable Housing ETF" and, together with the Women's ETF and the Minority ETF, the "Funds"), dated October 27, 2023 (the "Prospectus"), and should be read in conjunction therewith. The Women's ETF and the Minority ETF are sometimes referred to in this SAI individually as an "Equity ETF" and collectively as the "Equity ETFs". Each Fund's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, including the independent registered public accounting firm's report thereon found in each Fund's most recent annual report to shareholders, are incorporated into this SAI by reference. Copies of the Prospectus and the Funds' annual report, is available free of charge by calling the Fund at 844-448-3383 (844-GIVE-ETF), visiting the Funds' website (www.impactetfs.org) or writing to the Funds, Impact Shares Trust I, 5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75225

Capitalized terms used in this SAI and not otherwise defined have the meanings given them in the Funds' Prospectus. The principal U.S. national stock exchange on which the Funds are listed is NYSE Arca, Inc. (the "Exchange").

TABLE OF CONTENTS

THE FUNDS	1
DESCRIPTION OF INVESTMENTS AND RISK FACTORS	1
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER	8
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	8
NON-DIVERSIFIED STATUS	10
BORROWING	11
MANAGEMENT OF THE TRUST	11
INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICES	18
INFORMATION REGARDING PORTFOLIO MANAGER	22
<u>ADMINISTRATOR</u>	25
<u>DISTRIBUTOR</u>	26
TRANSFER AGENT	26
<u>CUSTODIAN</u>	27
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	27
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE	27
DESCRIPTION OF THE FUNDS' SHARES	28
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS	29
PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES	30
INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	34
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	43
APPENDIX A	44

THE FUNDS

Each Fund is a series of Impact Shares Trust I (the "Trust"), an open-end management investment company organized as a Delaware statutory trust pursuant to a Declaration of Trust dated May 19, 2016. This SAI relates only to the Funds. Each of the Minority ETF and the Women's ETF is a classified as a diversified Fund, and the Affordable Housing ETF is classified as non-diversified.

The Funds are exchange-traded funds ("ETFs") and shares of the Funds are listed on NYSE Arca, Inc. (the "Exchange"). The shares will trade on the Exchange at market prices that may differ to some degree from the shares' net asset value ("NAV"). The Funds issue and redeem shares on a continuous basis at NAV in large, specified numbers of shares called "Creation Units." Creation Units are issued and redeemed in-kind for securities included in the Funds' underlying indices (the "Underlying Indices" or "Index") and/or for cash at the discretion of the Funds. Except when aggregated in Creation Units, shares are not redeemable securities of the Funds. Retail investors, therefore, generally will not be able to purchase the shares directly from the Funds. Rather, most retail investors will purchase shares in the secondary market with the assistance of a broker.

Exchange Listing and Trading

There can be no assurance that the requirements of the Exchange necessary to maintain the listing of shares of the Funds will be met. The Exchange may remove the Funds from listing under certain circumstances.

As in the case of all equities traded on the Exchange, brokers' commissions on transactions in the Funds will be based on negotiated commission rates at customary levels for retail customers.

DESCRIPTION OF INVESTMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

The following information supplements the discussion of the investment policies and strategies of the Funds as described in the Prospectus. In pursuing their objectives, the Funds will invest as described in the Prospectus and as described below with respect to the following additional investment policies and strategies.

Supplemental Information regarding the Equity ETFs

The Underlying Index for each Equity ETF is rebalanced quarterly. The Index Provider, as defined below, annually reviews the parameters used in the selection of component securities of the Underlying Indices ("Component Securities"), including the eligibility criteria and the relevant social screen, to ensure that each Underlying Index continues to reflect the underlying market and the social goals referenced in the relevant social screen. The review consists of a qualitative and quantitative assessment of any developments in the market related to the social goals referenced in the social screen or in terms of market size, depth and overall liquidity conditions of the market.

Each Equity ETF may change its benchmark or its Underlying Index at any time without shareholder approval, including if, for example, the Underlying Index becomes unavailable; the Board of Trustees (the "Board") believes that the Underlying Index no longer serves the investment needs of a majority of shareholders or that another index may better serve their needs; or if the financial or economic environment makes it difficult for the Equity ETF's investment results to correspond sufficiently to its current benchmark or the Underlying Index. The Equity ETFs may specify a benchmark index that is "leveraged" or proprietary. There can be no assurance that the Equity ETFs will achieve their investment objectives.

The Equity ETFs engage in representative sampling, which is investing in a sample of securities selected by Impact Shares, Corp. ("Impact Shares"), investment sub-advisor to the Equity ETFs, to have a collective investment profile similar to that of the applicable Underlying Index. Securities selected have aggregate social characteristics (companies advancing the referenced social cause), investment characteristics (based on market capitalization and industry weightings), fundamental characteristics (such as yield, credit rating, maturity and duration) and liquidity measures similar to those of the applicable Underlying Index. Because the Equity ETFs use representative sampling, they may not hold all of the securities that are in its Underlying Index.

Each Equity ETF generally invests at least 80% of its total assets, plus any borrowings for investment purposes, in Component Securities. The Funds may invest the remainder of their assets in securities not included in their Underlying Index, but which Impact Shares believes will help the Equity ETF track the Underlying Index. For example, the Equity ETFs may invest in securities that are not components of their Underlying Index to reflect various corporate actions (such as mergers) and other changes in the Underlying Index (such as reconstitutions, additions and deletions). The Equity ETFs may also invest in cash and cash equivalents.

In addition, Impact Shares may also invest some of the Equity ETFs' assets in short-term U.S. government obligations, certificates of deposit, commercial paper and other money market instruments to enable the Equity ETFs to make investments quickly and to serve as collateral with respect to certain of its investments. The Equity ETFs may purchase securities on a when-issued or forward commitment basis. From time to time, in the sole discretion of Toroso and/or Impact Shares, cash balances of the Equity ETFs may be placed in a money market fund or investments may be made in shares of other investment companies, including other ETFs, subject to the applicable limits under the 1940 Act.

Role in Affairs of Portfolio Companies. Impact Shares Corp, in its capacity as a subadviser to the YWCA ETF and investment adviser to the NAACP ETF, has responsibility for voting proxies with respect to the Equity ETFs portfolio holdings consistent with those desired social outcomes expressed by the funds' social objectives. It is the policy of the Equity ETFs to take such steps as are necessary to protect their economic interests and advance the referenced social causes. If the opportunity presents itself, Impact Shares and Toroso Investments LLC ("Toroso"), investment advisers to the Equity ETFs only, reserve the option for any of their respective officers, directors or affiliates to accept a role on the board of directors of any company, regardless of whether the Equity ETFs hold any of the company's securities.

Supplemental Information Regarding the Affordable Housing ETF

Mortgage-Backed Securities. Mortgage-backed securities represent direct or indirect participation in, or are collateralized by and payable from, mortgage loans secured by real property or instruments derived from such loans and may be based on different types of mortgages, including those on residential properties or commercial real estate. Mortgage-backed securities include various types of securities, such as government stripped mortgage-backed securities, adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations. Generally, mortgage-backed securities represent partial interests in pools of mortgage loans assembled for sale to investors by various governmental agencies, such as Ginnie Mae; by government-related organizations, such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; and by private issuers, such as commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, and mortgage bankers. The average maturity of pass-through pools of mortgage-backed securities in which a fund may invest varies with the maturities of the underlying mortgage instruments. In addition, a pool's average maturity may be shortened by unscheduled payments on the underlying mortgages. Factors affecting mortgage prepayments include the level of interest rates, the general economic and social conditions, the location of the mortgaged property, and the age of the mortgage. Because prepayment rates of individual mortgage pools vary widely, the average life of a particular pool cannot be predicted accurately.

Mortgage-backed securities may be classified as private, government, or government-related, depending on the issuer or guarantor. Private mortgage-backed securities represent interest in pass-through pools consisting principally of conventional residential or commercial mortgage loans created by nongovernment issuers, such as commercial banks, savings and loan associations, and private mortgage insurance companies. Private mortgage-backed securities may not be readily marketable. In addition, mortgage-backed securities have been subject to greater liquidity risk when worldwide economic and liquidity conditions deteriorate. U.S. government mortgage- backed securities are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government. Ginnie Mae, the principal U.S. guarantor of these securities, is a wholly owned U.S. government corporation within the Department of Housing and Urban Development. Government-related mortgage-backed securities are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government. Issuers include Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are congressionally chartered corporations. In September 2008, the U.S. Treasury placed Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac under conservatorship and appointed the Federal Housing Finance Agency (the "FHFA") to manage their daily operations. In addition, the U.S. Treasury entered into purchase agreements with Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to provide them with capital in exchange for senior preferred stock. Pass-through securities issued by Fannie Mae are guaranteed as to timely payment of principal and interest by Fannie Mae. Participation certificates representing interests in mortgages from Freddie Mac's national portfolio are guaranteed as to the timely payment of interest and principal by Freddie Mac. Private, government, or government-related entities may create mortgage loan pools offering pass-through investments in addition to those described above. The mortgages underlying these securities may be alternative mortgage instruments (i.e., mortgage instruments whose principal or interest payments may vary or whose terms to maturity may be shorter than customary).

Mortgage-backed securities are often subject to more rapid repayment than their stated maturity date would indicate as a result of the pass-through of prepayments of principal on the underlying loans. Prepayments of principal by mortgagers or mortgage foreclosures shorten the term of the mortgage pool underlying the mortgage-backed security. A fund's ability to maintain positions in mortgage-backed securities is affected by the reductions in the principal amount of such securities resulting from prepayments. A fund's ability to reinvest prepayments of principal at comparable yield is subject to generally prevailing interest rates at that time. The values of mortgage-backed securities vary with changes in market interest rates generally and the differentials in yields among various kinds of government securities, mortgage-backed securities, and asset-backed securities. In periods of rising interest rates, the rate of prepayment tends to decrease, thereby lengthening the average life of a pool of mortgages supporting a mortgage-backed security. Conversely, in periods of falling interest rates, the rate of prepayment tends to increase, thereby shortening the average life of such a pool. Because prepayments of

principal generally occur when interest rates are declining, an investor, such as a fund, generally has to reinvest the proceeds of such prepayments at lower interest rates than those at which its assets were previously invested. Therefore, mortgage-backed securities have less potential for capital appreciation in periods of falling interest rates than other income-bearing securities of comparable maturity.

Mortgage-Backed Securities—To Be Announced ("TBA") Securities. A TBA securities transaction, which is a type of forward-commitment transaction, represents an agreement to buy or sell mortgage-backed securities with agreed-upon characteristics for a fixed unit price, with settlement on a scheduled future date, typically within 30 calendar days of the trade date. With TBA transactions, the particular securities (i.e., specified mortgage pools) to be delivered or received are not identified at the trade date; however, securities delivered to a purchaser must meet specified criteria, including face value, coupon rate, and maturity, and be within industry- accepted "good delivery" standards. A fund may sell TBA securities to hedge its portfolio positions or to dispose of mortgage-backed securities it owns under delayed-delivery arrangements. Proceeds of TBA securities sold are not received until the contractual settlement date. For TBA purchases, a fund will maintain sufficient liquid assets (e.g., cash or marketable securities) until settlement date in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price. Unsettled TBA securities are valued by an independent pricing service based on the characteristics of the securities to be delivered or received. A risk associated with TBA transactions is that at settlement, either the buyer fails to pay the agreed price for the securities, or the seller fails to deliver the agreed securities. As the value of such unsettled TBA securities is assessed on a daily basis, parties mitigate such risk by, among other things, exchanging collateral as security for performance, performing a credit analysis of the counterparty, allocating transactions among numerous counterparties, and monitoring its exposure to each counterparty.

Additional Information Concerning Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. The volatility and disruption that impacted the capital and credit markets during late 2008 and into 2009 have led to increased market concerns about Fannie Mae's and Freddie Mac's ability to withstand future credit losses associated with securities held in their investment portfolios, and on which they provide guarantees, without the direct support of the federal government. In September 2008, both Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were placed under the conservatorship of the FHFA. Under the plan of conservatorship, the FHFA has assumed control of, and generally has the power to direct, the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and is empowered to exercise all powers collectively held by their respective shareholders, directors and officers, including the power to (1) take over the assets of and operate Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac with all the powers of the shareholders, the directors, and the officers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and conduct all business of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obligations and money due to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac that are consistent with the conservator's appointment; (4) preserve and conserve the assets and property of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; and (5) contract for assistance in fulfilling any function, activity, action or duty of the conservator. In addition, in connection with the actions taken by the FHFA, the U.S. Treasury Department (the "Treasury") has entered into certain preferred stock purchase agreements with each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac that established the Treasury as the holder of a new class of senior preferred stock in each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which stock was issued in connection with financial contributions from the Treasury to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. The conditions attached to the financial contribution made by the Treasury to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the issuance of this senior preferred stock place significant restrictions on the activities of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac must obtain the consent of the Treasury to (i) make any payment to purchase or redeem its capital stock or pay any dividend other than in respect of the senior preferred stock issued to the Treasury, (ii) issue capital stock of any kind, (iii) terminate the conservatorship of the FHFA except in connection with a receivership, or (iv) increase its debt beyond certain specified levels. In addition, significant restrictions were placed on the maximum size of each of Fannie Mae's and Freddie Mac's respective portfolios of mortgage and mortgage-backed securities, and the purchase agreements entered into by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac provide that the maximum size of their portfolios of these assets must decrease by a specified percentage each year. On June 16, 2010, FHFA ordered Fannie Mae's and Freddie Mae's stock de-listed from the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") after the price of common stock in Fannie Mae fell below the NYSE's minimum average closing price of \$1 for more than 30 days The future status and role of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could be impacted by (among other things) the actions taken and restrictions placed on Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac by the FHFA in its role as conservator, the restrictions placed on Fannie Mae's and Freddie Mac's operations and activities as a result of the senior preferred stock investment made by the Treasury, market responses to developments at Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and future legislative and regulatory action that alters the operations, ownership, structure and/or mission of these institutions, each of which may, in turn, impact the value of, and cash flows on, any mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, including any such mortgage-backed securities held by the Fund. Under the FHFA's "Single Security Initiative," Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac have entered into a joint initiative to develop a common securitization platform for the issuance of Uniform Mortgage-Backed Securities ("UMBS"), which would generally align the characteristics of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac participation certificates. In June 2019, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac began issuing UMBS in place of their current "to be announced"-eligible mortgage-backed securities. The effect of the issuance of UMBS on the market for mortgage-backed securities is uncertain.

Supplemental Information Regarding All Funds

Pandemic Risk.

The continuing spread of an infectious respiratory illness caused by a novel strain of coronavirus (known as COVID-19) has caused volatility, severe market dislocations and liquidity constraints in many markets, including securities the Funds hold, and may adversely affect the Funds' investments and operations. The outbreak was first detected in December 2019 and subsequently spread globally. The transmission of COVID-19 and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in international and domestic travel restrictions

and disruptions, closed international borders, enhanced health screenings at ports of entry and elsewhere, disruption of and delays in healthcare service preparation and delivery, quarantines, event and service cancellations or interruptions, disruptions to business operations (including staff reductions), supply chains and consumer activity, as well as general concern and uncertainty that has negatively affected the economic environment. These disruptions have led to instability in the marketplace, including stock and credit market losses and overall volatility. The impact of COVID-19, and other infectious illness outbreaks, epidemics or pandemics that may arise in the future, could adversely affect the economies of many nations or the entire global economy, the financial performance of individual issuers, borrowers and sectors and the health of the markets generally in potentially significant and unforeseen ways. In addition, the impact of infectious illnesses, such as COVID-19, in emerging market countries may be greater due to generally less established healthcare systems.

This crisis or other public health crises may exacerbate other pre-existing political, social and economic risks in certain countries or globally. The Funds, Toroso, Impact Shares and their service providers have in place business continuity plans reasonably designed to ensure that they maintain normal business operations, and that the Funds, their portfolios and assets are protected. However, in the event of a pandemic or an outbreak, such as COVID-19, there can be no assurance that the Funds, Toroso, Impact Shares and service providers, or the issuers of securities in the Funds' portfolios, will be able to maintain normal business operations for an extended period of time or will not lose the services of key personnel on a temporary or long-term basis due to illness or other reasons. A pandemic or disease could also impair the operational systems upon which Toroso or Impact Shares relies and could otherwise disrupt the ability of the Funds' service providers to perform essential tasks. The foregoing could lead to a significant economic downturn or recession, increased market volatility, a greater number of market closures, higher default rates and adverse effects on the values and liquidity of securities or other assets. Such impacts, which may vary across asset classes, may adversely affect the performance of the Funds' investments, the Funds and your investment in the Funds. In certain cases, an exchange or market may close or issue trading halts on either specific securities or even the entire market, which may result in the Funds being, among other things, unable to buy or sell certain securities or financial instruments or to accurately price its investments. Governmental authorities and regulators throughout the world, such as the U.S. Federal Reserve, have in the past responded to major economic disruptions with changes to fiscal and monetary policy, including but not limited to, direct capital infusions, new monetary programs and dramatically lower interest rates. Certain of those policy changes are being implemented in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Such policy changes may adversely affect the value, volatility and liquidity of dividend and interest paying securities. The effect of recent efforts undertaken by the U.S. Federal Reserve to address the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, such as the reduction of the federal funds target rate, and other monetary and fiscal actions that may be taken by the U.S. federal government to stimulate the U.S. economy, are not yet fully known. The duration of the COVID-19 outbreak and its full impacts are also unknown, resulting in a high degree of uncertainty for potentially extended periods of time, especially in certain sectors in which the Funds may make investments.

Illiquid Securities

Historically, illiquid securities have included securities subject to contractual or legal restrictions on resale because they have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), securities that are otherwise not readily marketable and repurchase agreements having a maturity of longer than seven days. Securities that have not been registered under the Securities Act are referred to as "private placements" or "restricted securities" and are purchased directly from the issuer or in the secondary market.

Open-end investment companies do not typically hold a significant amount of these restricted securities or other illiquid securities because of the potential for delays on resale and uncertainty in valuation. Limitations on resale may have an adverse effect on the marketability of portfolio securities and an investment company might be unable to dispose of restricted or other illiquid securities promptly or at reasonable prices and might thereby experience difficulty satisfying redemptions within seven days. An investment company might also have to register such restricted securities in order to dispose of them, which would result in additional expense and delay. Adverse market conditions could impede such a public offering of securities. The Funds may not acquire any illiquid securities if, as a result thereof, more than 15% of the market value of a Fund's net assets would be in investments that are illiquid or otherwise not readily marketable. Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act requires a Fund to adopt a liquidity risk management program to assess and manage its liquidity risk. Under its program, a Fund is required to classify its investments into specific liquidity categories and monitor compliance with limits on investments in illiquid securities. While the liquidity risk management program attempts to assess and manage liquidity risk, there is no guarantee it will be effective in its operations and it may not reduce the liquidity risk inherent in a Fund's investments. The SEC has recently proposed amendments to Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act and Rule 22c-1 under the 1940 Act that, if adopted, would, among other things, cause more investments to be treated as illiquid, which could prevent a Fund from investing in securities that the Toroso, Impact Shares, or a sub-adviser believes are attractive investment opportunities.

In recent years, however, a large institutional market has developed for certain securities that are not registered under the Securities Act, including repurchase agreements, commercial paper, foreign securities, municipal securities and corporate bonds and notes. Institutional investors depend on an efficient institutional market in which the unregistered security can be readily resold or on an issuer's ability to honor a demand for repayment. The fact that there are contractual or legal restrictions on resale of such investments to the

general public or to certain institutions may not be indicative of their liquidity.

Rule 144A Securities. The SEC has adopted Rule 144A, which allows a broader institutional trading market for securities otherwise subject to restriction on their resale to the general public. Rule 144A establishes a "safe harbor" from the registration requirements of the Securities Act on resales of certain securities to qualified institutional buyers. The Index Provider will monitor the liquidity of Rule 144A securities in the Underlying Index and will re-balance each month as necessary based on the security's liquidity and other eligibility criteria.

The Funds may purchase securities in the United States that are not registered for sale under federal securities laws but which can be resold to institutions under SEC Rule 144A or under an exemption from such laws. Provided that a dealer or institutional trading market in such securities exists, these restricted securities or Rule 144A securities are treated as exempt from the Funds' limit on illiquid securities. The Index Provider will determine the liquidity of restricted securities or Rule 144A securities by looking at factors such as sources quote, frequency of quotes, number of sources with size, bid-offer spreads, average quote size and movers' count. If institutional trading in restricted securities or Rule 144A securities were to decline, the Funds' illiquidity could increase and the Funds could be adversely affected.

Section 4(a)(2) Commercial Paper. The Funds may invest in commercial paper issued in reliance on the exemption from registration afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. Section 4(a)(2) commercial paper is restricted as to disposition under federal securities laws and is generally sold to institutional investors who agree that they are purchasing the paper for investment purposes and not with a view to public distribution. Any resale by the purchaser must be in an exempt transaction. Section 4(a)(2) commercial paper is normally resold to other institutional investors through or with the assistance of the issuer or investment dealers who make a market in Section 4(a) (2) commercial paper, thus providing liquidity. Impact Shares believes that Section 4(a)(2) commercial paper and possibly certain other restricted securities that meet the criteria for liquidity established by the Board are quite liquid. The Funds intend therefore, to treat the restricted securities which meet the criteria for liquidity established by the Board, including Section 4(a)(2) commercial paper, as determined by Impact Shares, as liquid and not subject to the investment limitation applicable to illiquid securities. In addition, because Section 4(a)(2) commercial paper is liquid, the Funds do not intend to subject such paper to the limitation applicable to restricted securities. The Funds will not invest more than 10% of their total assets in restricted securities (excluding Rule 144A securities).

Borrowing and Lending

Borrowing. A Fund may borrow money from banks (including their custodian banks) or from other lenders to the extent permitted under applicable law. The 1940 Act requires a Fund to maintain asset coverage of at least 300% for all such borrowings and should such asset coverage at any time fall below 300%, a Fund would be required to reduce their borrowings within three days to the extent necessary to meet the requirements of the 1940 Act. A Fund will not make any borrowing that would cause their outstanding borrowings to exceed one-third of the value of their total assets (including the proceeds of such borrowing) immediately following such borrowing. To reduce their borrowings, a Fund might be required to sell securities at a time when it would be disadvantageous to do so. In addition, because interest on money borrowed is an expense that it would not otherwise incur, a Fund may have less net investment income during periods when their borrowings are substantial. The interest paid by a Fund on borrowings may be more or less than the yield on the securities purchased with borrowed funds, depending on prevailing market conditions.

Securities Lending. Securities lending involves lending of portfolio securities to qualified broker/dealers, banks or other financial institutions who may need to borrow securities in order to complete certain transactions, such as covering short sales, avoiding failure to deliver securities, or completing arbitrage operations. Securities are loaned pursuant to a securities lending agreement approved by the Board and under the terms, structure and the to a securities lending agreement approved by the Board and under the terms, structure and the aggregate amount of such loans consistent with the 1940 Act. Lending portfolio securities increases the lender's income by receiving a fixed fee or a percentage of the collateral, in addition to receiving the interest or dividend on the securities loaned. As collateral for the loaned securities, the borrower gives the lender collateral equal to at least 100% of the value of the loaned securities. The collateral may consist of cash (including U.S. dollars), securities issued by the U.S. government or its agencies or instrumentalities, or such other collateral as may be approved by the Board. The borrower must also agree to increase the collateral if the value of the loaned securities increases but may request some of the collateral be returned if the market value of the loaned securities goes down.

During the existence of the loan, the lender will receive from the borrower amounts equivalent to any dividends, interest or other distributions on the loaned securities, as well as interest on such amounts. Loans are subject to termination by the lender or a borrower at any time. The Funds may choose to terminate a loan in order to vote in a proxy solicitation.

During the time a security is on loan and the issuer of the security makes an interest or dividend payment, the borrower pays the lender a substitute payment equal to any interest or dividends the lender would have received directly from the issuer of the security if the lender had not loaned the security. When a lender receives dividends directly from domestic or certain foreign corporations, a portion of the dividends paid by the lender itself to its shareholders and attributable to those dividends (but not the portion attributable to substitute

payments) may be eligible for (i) treatment as "qualified dividend income" in the hands of individuals or (ii) the federal dividends received deduction in the hands of corporate shareholders. Impact Shares expects generally to follow the practice of causing

the Funds to terminate a securities loan – and forego any income on the loan after the termination – in anticipation of a dividend payment. By doing so, a lender would receive the dividend directly from the issuer of the securities, rather than a substitute payment from the borrower of the securities, and thereby preserve the possibility of those tax benefits for certain shareholders. A lender's shares may be held by affiliates of Toroso or Impact Shares, and Impact Shares' termination of securities loans under these circumstances (resulting in the lender's foregoing income from the loans after the termination) may provide an economic benefit to those affiliates.

Securities lending involves counterparty risk, including the risk that a borrower may not provide additional collateral when required or return the loaned securities in a timely manner. Counterparty risk also includes a potential loss of rights in the collateral if the borrower or the Lending Agent defaults or fails financially. This risk is increased if loans are concentrated with a single borrower or limited number of borrowers. There are no limits on the number of borrowers that may be used, and securities may be loaned to only one or a small group of borrowers. Participation in securities lending also incurs the risk of loss in connection with investments of cash collateral received from the borrowers. Cash collateral is invested in accordance with investment guidelines contained in the Securities Lending Agreement and approved by the Board. Some or all of the cash collateral received in connection with the securities lending program may be invested in one or more pooled investment vehicles, including, among other vehicles, money market funds managed by the Lending Agent (or its affiliates). The Lending Agent shares in any income resulting from the investment of such cash collateral, and an affiliate of the Lending Agent may receive asset-based fees for the management of such pooled investment vehicles, which may create a conflict of interest between the Lending Agent (or its affiliates) and the Funds with respect to the management of such cash collateral. To the extent that the value or return on investments of the cash collateral declines below the amount owed to a borrower, the Funds may incur losses that exceed the amount it earned on lending the security. The Lending Agent will indemnify the Funds from losses resulting from a borrower's failure to return a loaned security when due, but such indemnification does not extend to losses associated with declines in the value of cash collateral investments.

Derivatives

Generally, a derivative is a financial arrangement, the value of which is based on, or "derived" from, a traditional security, asset or market index. There are, in fact, many different types of derivatives and many different ways to use them. There is a range of risks associated with those uses. Futures and options are commonly used for traditional hedging purposes, among other purposes, to attempt to protect the Funds from exposure to changing interest rates, securities prices or currency exchange rates and as a low-cost method of gaining exposure to a particular securities market without investing directly in those securities. However, some derivatives are used for leverage, which tends to magnify the effects of an instrument's price changes as market conditions change. Leverage involves the use of a small amount of money to control a large amount of financial assets, and can in some circumstances lead to significant losses.

The SEC recently adopted a rule under the 1940 Act regulating the use by registered investment companies of derivatives and many related instruments. That rule, among other things, restricts a Fund's ability to engage in derivatives transactions or so increase the cost of derivatives transactions that such Fund would be unable to implement its investment strategy. The Funds do not currently engage in derivative transactions and have adopted a policy prohibiting derivatives transactions. If the Board deems it advisable and in the best interests of shareholders of the Funds, the Funds may change this policy in the future and allow derivatives transactions undertaken in compliance with the new SEC rules.

Other Investment Policies

Money Market Instruments. The Funds may invest in money market instruments. Money market securities are high-quality, dollar-denominated, short-term instruments. They consist of (i) bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, notes and time deposits of highly-rated U.S. branches of foreign banks; (ii) U.S. Treasury obligations and obligations issued or guaranteed by agencies and instrumentalities of the U.S. Government; (iii) high-quality commercial paper issued by U.S. foreign corporations; and (iv) debt obligations with a maturity of one year or less issued by corporations with outstanding high-quality commercial paper ratings.

Convertible Securities. Convertible securities may offer higher income than the common stocks into which they are convertible and include fixed-income or zero coupon debt securities, which may be converted or exchanged at a stated or determinable exchange ratio into underlying shares of common stock. Prior to their conversion, convertible securities may have characteristics similar to both non-convertible debt securities and equity securities. While convertible securities generally offer lower yields than non-convertible debt securities of similar quality, their prices may reflect changes in the value of the underlying common stock. Convertible securities entail less credit risk than the issuer's common stock.

Warrants and Rights. Warrants are options to purchase equity securities at a specified price and are valid for a specific time period. Rights are similar to warrants, but normally have a short duration and are distributed by the issuer to its shareholders. The Funds may purchase warrants and rights, provided that the Funds presently do not intend to invest more than 20% of their net assets at the time of

purchase in warrants and rights other than those that have been acquired in units or attached to other securities.

Equity Securities. Because it may purchase common stocks and other equity securities, the Funds are subject to the risk that stock prices will fall over short or long periods of time. In addition, common stocks represent a share of ownership in a company, and rank after bonds and preferred stock in their claim on the company's assets in the event of bankruptcy.

Securities of Other Investment Companies. Such investments are subject to limitations prescribed by the 1940 Act unless an SEC exemption is applicable or as may be permitted by rules under the 1940 Act or SEC staff interpretations thereof. The 1940 Act limitations currently provide, in part, that the Funds may not purchase shares of an investment company if (a) such a purchase would cause a Fund to own in the aggregate more than 3% of the total outstanding voting stock of the investment company; (b) such a purchase would cause a Fund to have more than 5% of their total assets invested in the investment company; or (c) more than 10% of a Fund's total assets would be invested in the aggregate in all investment companies. These investment companies typically incur fees that are separate from those fees incurred directly by the Funds. The Funds' purchase of such investment company securities results in the layering of expenses, such that shareholders would indirectly bear a proportionate share of the operating expenses of such investment companies, including advisory fees, in addition to paying Fund expenses.

Privately Placed Securities. The Funds may invest in securities that are neither listed on a stock exchange nor traded over-the-counter, including privately placed securities. Investing in such unlisted securities, including investments in new and early stage companies, may involve a high degree of business and financial risk that can result in substantial losses. As a result of the absence of a public trading market for these securities, they may be less liquid than publicly traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately negotiated transactions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid by the Funds, or less than what may be considered the fair value of such securities. Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the disclosure and other investor protection requirements that might be applicable if their securities were publicly traded. If such securities are required to be registered under the securities laws of one or more jurisdictions before being resold, the Funds may be required to bear the expenses of registration.

Operating Deficits. The expenses of operating the Funds (including the management fees payable to Toroso (for the YWCA ETF) or Impact Shares (for the NAACP ETF and Affordable Housing ETF)) may exceed its income, thereby requiring that the difference be paid out of the Funds' capital, reducing the Funds' investments and potential for profitability.

Accuracy of Public Information. To the extent that the Funds invests any of their assets in securities not included in the Underlying Index, Impact Shares selects investments for the Funds, in part, on the basis of information and data filed by issuers with various government regulators or made directly available to Impact Shares by the issuers or through sources other than the issuers. Although Impact Shares evaluates all such information and data and ordinarily seeks independent corroboration when Impact Shares considers it appropriate and when such corroboration is reasonably available, Impact Shares is not in a position to confirm the completeness, genuineness or accuracy of such information and data.

Trading Limitations. For all securities listed on a securities exchange, including options listed on a public exchange, the exchange generally has the right to suspend or limit trading under certain circumstances. Such suspensions or limits could render certain strategies difficult to complete or continue and subject the Funds to loss. Also, such a suspension could render it impossible for the Funds to liquidate positions thereby exposing them to potential losses. Finally, to the extent that advisory personnel of Toroso or Impact Shares acquire material non-public information in the course of service on the board of directors or creditor's committee of a company, the Funds may be prevented from buying or selling securities of that company.

Tracking and Correlation. While the Funds do not expect that their daily returns will deviate significantly from its daily investment objective, several factors may affect the Funds' ability to achieve this correlation. Among these factors are: (1) the Funds' expenses, including brokerage (which may be increased by high portfolio turnover) and the cost of the investment techniques employed by the Funds; (2) in the case of the Equity ETFs, less than all of the securities in the benchmark index being held by the Equity ETFs and securities not included in the benchmark index being held by the Equity ETFs; (3) an imperfect correlation between the performance of instruments held by the Funds, and the performance of the underlying securities in the cash market; (4) bid-ask spreads (the effect of which may be increased by portfolio turnover); (5) holding instruments traded in a market that has become illiquid or disrupted; (6) the Funds' share prices being rounded to the nearest cent; (7) in the case of the Equity ETFs, changes to the benchmark index that are not disseminated in advance; (8) the need to conform the Funds' portfolio holdings to comply with investment restrictions or policies or regulatory or tax law requirements; (9) actual purchases and sales of the shares of the Funds may differ from estimated transactions reported prior to the time share prices are calculated; and (10) early and unanticipated closings of the markets on which the holdings of the Funds trade, resulting in the inability of the Funds to execute intended portfolio transactions. While a close correlation of the Funds to their benchmark may be achieved on any single trading day, over time the cumulative percentage increase or decrease in the NAV of the shares of the Funds may diverge significantly from the cumulative percentage decrease or increase in the benchmark due to a compounding effect.

PORTFOLIO TURNOVER

The frequency and amount of portfolio purchases and sales (known as the "turnover rate") will vary from year to year. The portfolio turnover rate may vary greatly from year to year and will not be a limiting factor when Impact Shares deems portfolio changes appropriate nor, in the case of the Equity ETFs will it affect when the Index Provider deems re-balancing of the Underlying Index appropriate. Although the Funds generally do not intend to trade for short-term profits, the securities held by the Funds will be sold whenever Impact Shares believes it is appropriate to do so, without regard to the length of time a particular security may have been held. Higher portfolio turnover involves correspondingly greater transaction costs, including any brokerage commissions that the Funds will bear directly, and can cause the Funds to recognize more short-term capital gains (which currently are taxable to shareholders at higher rates than long-term capital gains).

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The fundamental investment restrictions below may be changed only with the approval of a "vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities" of the Funds. A "vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities" of the Funds means the lesser of (i) 67% or more of the shares at a meeting if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding shares are present or represented by proxy or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares. Except for investment restrictions designated as fundamental in the Funds' Prospectus or in this SAI, the investment policies described in the Funds' Prospectus or this SAI are not fundamental and may be changed without shareholder approval.

If a percentage policy set forth in the Prospectus or one of the following percentage investment restrictions is adhered to at the time a security is purchased, later changes in a percentage will not be considered a violation of the policy or restriction unless any excess or deficiency exists immediately after and as a result of such purchase or pertains to the Funds' limitations on borrowing and investment in illiquid securities.

Fundamental Investment Restrictions. The following investment restrictions are fundamental policies and, as such, may not be changed without the approval of a "vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities.

With respect to Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF and Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF, each Fund may not:

- 1. Purchase any security that would cause the Fund to concentrate (invest 25% or more of its total assets) in securities of issuers primarily engaged in any particular industry or group of industries (other than securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies or instrumentalities), except that the Fund will concentrate to approximately the same extent that its Underlying Index concentrates in the securities of such particular industry or group of industries;
 - 2. Issue senior securities or borrow in excess of the amounts permitted by the 1940 Act;
- 3. Underwrite securities of other issuers, except to the extent that the Fund, in disposing of Fund securities, may be deemed an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act;
- 4. Purchase or sell real estate, except that the Fund may (a) invest in securities or other instruments directly or indirectly secured by real estate, (b) invest in securities or other instruments issued by issuers that invest in real estate, and (c) hold for prompt sale, real estate or interests in real estate to which it may gain an ownership interest through the forfeiture of collateral securing loans or debt securities held by it;
- 5. Purchase or sell commodities or commodity contracts, but this shall not prevent the Fund from purchasing, selling and entering into financial futures contracts (including futures contracts on indices of securities, interest rates and currencies), options on financial futures contracts, swaps, forward contracts, foreign currency spot and forward contracts or other derivative instruments that are not related to physical commodities; and
- 6. Lend any property or make any loan if, as a result, more than 33 1/3% of its total assets would be loaned to other parties (including the value of collateral received for loans of portfolio securities), but this limitation does not apply to the purchase of debt securities in which it is authorized to invest in accordance with its investment objective and policies or to repurchase agreements.¹
- 7. With respect to 75% of its total assets, purchase the securities of any one issuer if, immediately after and as a result of such purchase, (a) the value of the Fund's holdings in the securities of such issuer exceeds 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets, or (b) the Fund owns more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer (with the exception that this restriction does not apply to the

Fund's investments in the securities of the U.S. government, or its agencies or instrumentalities, or other investment companies).

With respect to Fundamental Investment Restriction number 6, the Funds have no current intention to engage in reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending, but the Funds may change this intention at any time without shareholder approval.

With respect to Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF, the Fund may not:

- 1. Purchase any security that would cause the Fund to concentrate (invest 25% or more of its total assets) in securities of issuers primarily engaged in any particular industry or group of industries (other than securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies or instrumentalities);
 - 2. Issue senior securities or borrow in excess of the amounts permitted by the 1940 Act;¹
- 3. Underwrite securities of other issuers, except to the extent that the Fund, in disposing of Fund securities, may be deemed an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act;
- 4. Purchase or sell real estate, except that the Fund may (a) invest in securities or other instruments directly or indirectly secured by real estate, (b) invest in securities or other instruments issued by issuers that invest in real estate, and (c) hold for prompt sale, real estate or interests in real estate to which it may gain an ownership interest through the forfeiture of collateral securing loans or debt securities held by it;
- 5. Purchase or sell commodities or commodity contracts, but this shall not prevent the Fund from purchasing, selling and entering into financial futures contracts (including futures contracts on indices of securities, interest rates and currencies), options on financial futures contracts, swaps, forward contracts, foreign currency spot and forward contracts or other derivative instruments that are not related to physical commodities; or
- 6. Lend any property or make any loan if, as a result, more than 33 1/3% of its total assets would be loaned to other parties (including the value of collateral received for loans of portfolio securities), but this limitation does not apply to the purchase of debt securities in which it is authorized to invest in accordance with its investment objective and policies or to repurchase agreements.²

Non-Fundamental Investment Restrictions. The Funds are also subject to the following non-fundamental investment restrictions and policies that may be changed by the Board without shareholder approval. Each Fund may not:

- 1. Acquire any illiquid securities if, as a result thereof, more than 15% of the market value of the Fund's net assets would be in investments that are illiquid;
- 2. Acquire securities of other investment companies, except as permitted by the 1940 Act (currently under the 1940 Act, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in the aggregate in shares of other investment companies and up to 5% of its total assets in any one investment company, provided the investment does not represent more than 3% of the voting stock of the acquired investment company at the time such shares are purchased, and may also invest in other investment companies pursuant to exemptions provided in or under the 1940 Act and in accordance with no-action positions of the staff of the SEC);
- 3. Borrow on margin, notwithstanding fundamental investment restriction number 2, unless such activity is permitted by applicable law; and
- 4. If the Fund is invested in by another series of the Trust in reliance on Section 12(d)(1)(G), it may not acquire securities of registered open-end investment companies or registered unit investment trusts in reliance on Sections 12(d)(1)(F) or 12(d)(1) (G) of the 1940 Act.

Other Information. The following commentary is intended to help investors better understand the meaning of the Funds' fundamental policies by briefly describing limitations, if any, imposed by the 1940 Act. References to the 1940 Act below may encompass rules, regulations or orders issued by the SEC and, to the extent deemed appropriate by the Funds, interpretations and guidance provided by the SEC staff. These descriptions are intended as brief summaries of such limitations as of the date of this SAI; they are not comprehensive, and they are qualified in all cases by reference to the 1940 Act (including any rules, regulations or orders issued by the SEC and any relevant interpretations and guidance provided by the SEC staff). These descriptions are subject to change based on evolving guidance by the appropriate regulatory authority and are not part of the Funds' fundamental policies.

For purposes of fundamental investment restriction No. 1 above, a Fund will consider the concentration policies of any underlying funds in which it invests when evaluating compliance with its concentration policy.

The 1940 Act currently permits an open-end investment company to borrow money from a bank so long as immediately after any such borrowing the ratio that the value of the total assets of the investment company (including the amount of any such borrowing), less the amount of all liabilities and indebtedness (other than such borrowing) of the investment company, bears to the amount of such

borrowing is at least 300%. A lender to the Funds may require that the Funds pledge its assets as collateral. If the Funds were to default on a loan secured by pledged assets, the lender would be entitled to foreclose on and dispose of the pledged assets, but the lender could retain only the amount of assets (or the disposition proceeds of such assets) necessary to pay off the defaulted loan.

¹ For purposes of Fundamental Investment Restriction No. 2 above, margin and collateral arrangements with respect to the purchase or sale of mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities and when-issued, to-be-announced, dollar roll and other transactions that result or may result in the delayed delivery of securities are not deemed to be a pledge of assets.

With respect to Fundamental Investment Restriction number 6, the Fund has no current intention to engage in reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending, but the Fund may change this intention at any time without shareholder approval.

Under the 1940 Act, each Fund may not issue senior securities or borrow in excess of 33 1/3% of the Fund's total assets (after giving effect to any such borrowing), which amount excludes borrowing for temporary purposes and in an amount not more than 5% of the Funds' total assets at the time the borrowing for temporary purposes is made.

For purposes of Non-Fundamental Investment Restriction No. 3 above, the purchase of Senior Loans, corporate debt securities, and other investment assets with the proceeds of a permitted borrowing, as well as margin payments or other arrangements in connection with transactions in short sales, futures contracts, options, and other financial instruments are not considered to constitute the purchase of securities on margin.

DIVERSIFIED / NON-DIVERSIFIED STATUS

Minority ETF and the Women's ETF:

Each of the Minority ETF and the Women's ETF is "diversified" within the meaning of the 1940 Act. Under applicable federal laws, to qualify as a diversified fund, each Fund, with respect to 75% of its total assets, may not invest greater than 5% of its total assets in any one issuer and may not hold greater than 10% of the securities of one issuer, other than investments in cash and cash items (including receivables), U.S. government securities, and securities of other investment companies. The remaining 25% of the Fund's total assets does not need to be "diversified" and may be invested in securities of a single issuer, subject to other applicable laws. The diversification of the Fund's holdings is measured at the time the Fund purchases a security. However, if the Fund purchases a security and holds it for a period of time, the security may become a larger percentage of the Fund's total assets due to movements in the financial markets. If the market affects several securities held by the Fund, the Fund may have a greater percentage of its assets invested in securities of fewer issuers.

Affordable Housing ETF:

The Affordable Housing ETF is classified as a "non-diversified" investment company, which means that the proportion of the Fund's assets that may be invested in the securities of a single issuer is not limited by the 1940 Act's diversification requirements. As a non-diversified fund, a relatively high percentage of the Fund's assets may be invested in the securities of a limited number of issuers, primarily within the same economic sector. The Fund's portfolio securities, therefore, may be more susceptible to any single economic, political, or regulatory occurrence than the portfolio securities of a more diversified investment company.

All Funds:

Each Fund intends to qualify as a regulated investment company ("RIC") accorded special tax treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"), which imposes its own diversification requirements on the Fund that are less restrictive than the requirements applicable to the "diversified" investment companies under the 1940 Act.

BORROWING

Shared Credit Facility

The Funds, along with each other series of the Trust, have the ability to enter into a shared credit agreement. As of the date of this SAI, the Funds have not entered into any such shared credit agreement, but may do so in the future.

MANAGEMENT OF THE TRUST

The Board of Trustees (the "Board") provides broad oversight of the operations and affairs of the Funds and protects the interests of shareholders. The Board has overall responsibility to manage and control the business affairs of the Funds, including the complete and exclusive authority to establish policies regarding the management, conduct and operation of the Funds' business. The names and birthdates of the Trustees and officers of the Funds, the year each was first elected or appointed to office, their principal business occupations during the last five years, the number of funds overseen by each Trustee and other directorships or trusteeships they hold are shown below. The business address for each Trustee and officer of the Funds is c/o Impact Shares, Corp.,5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75225.

At a special shareholders' meeting held on August 31, 2023, the shareholders of the Funds elected Mr. Guillermo Trias, Ms. Monica Byrd, Ms. Pamela Cytron, and Mr. Lawrence Jules as new Trustees, following the resignations of Mr. Winston Lowe and Ms. Kathleen Legg.

Name and Date of Birth INDEPENDENT TRUS	Position(s) with the Funds	Term of Office ¹ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During the Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios in Impact Shares Fund Complex ² Overseen by Trustees	Other Directorships/ Trusteeships Held During the Past Five Years	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, Skills for Board Membership
Monica H. Byrd (1979)	Independent Trustee	Indefinite Term; August 2023 - Present	Chief Financial Officer of LFO Management, LLC since 2019; Chief Financial Officer of Glencoe Capital/Stockwell Capital 2018- 2019; Vice President Finance of Glencoe Capital/Stockwell Capital since 2016-2018.	3	N/A	Significant experience in the financial industry; significant administrative and managerial experience.

INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES

Pamela Cytron (1966)	Independent Trustees	Indefinite Term; August 2023 - Present	CEO & Founder, Pendo Systems, Inc. (through July 2020). President - The Founder's Arena (January 2023 – Present) RegAlytics (4/2021 – December 2022): Non-executive Board advisor.	3	Serves on the Boards of First Rate Inc. (1/2015-Present); First Rate Ventures (1/2022 – Present); Privacy Lock (October 2022 – Present) (nonexecutive Board role); and World Technology Partners (April 2022 – Present) (Vice President). Served on the Board of Global
----------------------	-------------------------	--	---	---	---

Significant experience in the financial industry; significant administrative and managerial experience.

Name and <u>Date of Birth</u>	Position(s) with the Funds	Term of Office ¹ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During the Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios in Impact Shares Fund Complex ² Overseen by Trustees	Other Directorships/ Trusteeships Held During the Past Five Years Recovery Initiatives Foundation (September 2011-April 2022) (Chairman).	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, Skills for Board Membership
Lawrence Jules (1968)	Independent Trustee	Indefinite Term; August 2023 - Present	Vice President and Head Trader at 3Edge Asset Management LLC since January 2022; and Director and Head Trader at Charles Schwab Investment Management since August 2008 – December 2022.	3	Serves as a director of the 600 Atlantic/Federal Reserve Bank of Boston Federal Credit Union	Significant experience in the financial industry; significant administrative and managerial experience

Trustees serve until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

The "Impact Shares Fund Complex" consists of each series of Impact Shares Trust I. 2

Name and Date of Birth INTERESTED TRUST	Position(s) with the Funds EEs	Term of Office ¹ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During the Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios in Impact Shares Fund Complex ² Overseen by Trustees	Other Directorships/ Trusteeships Held During the Past Five Years	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, Skills for Board Membership
Ethan Powell (1975)	Trustee; Chairman of the Board	Indefinite Term; Trustee since May 2016; Chairman of the Board since May 2016	Principal and CIO of Brookmont Capital; President and Founder of Impact Shares LLC ("Impact Shares") since December 2015; Trustee of the Highland and Nexpoint Fund Complex from June 2012; and Independent director of Kelly Strategic ETF Trust.	3	Serves as Independent Chairman of the Board of the Highland Fund Complex and the NexPoint Credit Strategies Fund Complex (collectively, 25 funds) and is a member of the Board of Kelly Strategic Management Fund	Significant experience in the financial industry; significant executive experience including past service as an officer of funds in the Highland Fund Complex; significant administrative and managerial experience.

GuillermoTrias (1976)	Interested Trustee	Indefinite Term; August 2023 - Present	Co-Founder & CEO of the Tidal Financial Group of companies since 2016	3	Manager (director) of Toroso Investments, LLC	Significant experience in the financial industry; significant executive experience; significant administrative and managerial
						experience.

Mr. Powell is deemed to be an "interested person" of the Trust, as defined in the 1940 Act, because of his current affiliation with Impact Shares, Corp., the YWCA ETFs' investment sub-adviser and the NAACP and Affordable Housing ETF's investment adviser. Mr. Trias is deemed an "interested person" of the Trust, as defined in the 1940 Act, because of his current affiliation with Toroso Investments LLC, the YWCA ETFs' investment adviser.

Name and Date of Birth	Position(s) with the Funds	Term of Office and Length of Time Served ⁴	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years
OFFICERS Ethan Powell Born: 1975	President and Treasurer	January 2018 – Present.	See above under "Interested Trustees".
Hatim Banaja Born: 1981	Vice President	September 2023 – Present.	Head of Strategic Projects, Tidal Financial Group (2022 – Present). Global Head of Equity Client Solutions Business Development, Bank of America Corporate and Investment Bank (2019 – 2021). Global Equity Volatility Business Manager, JP Morgan Corporate and Investment Bank (2014 – 2019).
William H. Woolverton, Esq. Born: 1951	Chief Compliance Officer and AML Compliance Officer		Chief Compliance Officer (since 2023), Compliance Advisor (2022 – 2023), Toroso Investments, LLC; Chief Compliance Officer, Tidal ETF Services LLC (since 2022); Senior Compliance Advisor, Cipperman Compliance Services, LLC (2020 to 2022); Operating Partner, Altamont Capital Partners (private equity firm) (since 2021); Managing Director and Head of Legal - US, Waystone (global governance solutions) (2016 to 2019)
Eric Olsen Born: 1970	Assistant Treasurer	September 2023 – Present.	Director of Accounting, SEI Investments Global Fund Services (March 2021 to present); Deputy Head of Fund Operations, Traditional Assets, Aberdeen Standard Investments (August 2013 to February 2021).
Aaron J. Perkovich Born: 1973	Assistant Treasurer	September 2023 – Present.	Head of Fund Administration (since 2023), Fund Administration Manager, Tidal ETF Services LLC (since 2022); Assistant Director Investments, Mason Street Advisors, LLC (2021 to 2022); Vice President, U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC (2006 to 2021).

Secretary September 2023 – Present.

ETF Regulatory Manager (since 2021), Tidal ETF Services LLC; Senior Paralegal, Rafferty Asset Management, LLC (2013 to 2020); Senior Paralegal, Officer, U.S Bancorp Fund Services LLC (2005 to 2013).

Qualifications of Trustees

Lissa M. Richter

Born: 1979

The following provides an overview of the considerations that led the Board to conclude that each individual serving as a Trustee of the Trust should so serve. Among the factors the Board considered when concluding that an individual should serve on the Board were the following: (i) the individual's business and professional experience and accomplishments; (ii) the individual's ability to work effectively with the other members of the Board; (iii) the individual's prior experience, if any, serving on company boards (including public companies and, where relevant, other investment companies) and the boards of other complex enterprises and organizations; and (iv) how the individual's skills, experiences and attributes would contribute to an appropriate mix of relevant skills and experience on the Board.

In respect of each current Trustee, the individual's professional accomplishments and prior experience, including, in some cases, in fields related to the operations of the Trust, were a significant factor in the determination that the individual should serve as a Trustee of the Trust. Each Trustee's professional experience and additional considerations that contributed to the Board's conclusion that an individual should serve on the Board are summarized in the table above.

Trustees' Compensation

The officers of the Trust and those of its Trustees who are "interested persons" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the Funds receive no direct remuneration from the Trust. Each Independent Trustee receives an annual retainer of \$● payable in quarterly installments and allocated among each fund in the Impact Shares' Fund Complex. The Independent Trustees do not receive any pension or retirement benefits. The following table shows the total compensation received or accrued from each Fund and the Impact Share Fund Complex by each of the Independent Trustees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Mr. Lowe and Ms. Legg resigned as Trustees effective August 31, 2023.

The Officers hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board of Trustees and until their successors shall have been elected and qualified.

Trustee Name	pensation from omen's	pensation from linority	Af	nsation from fordable lousing		pensation from the
Trustee Name	 LIF	 ETF		ETF	Impact Sna	res Fund Complex
Winston Lowe	\$ 5,000	\$ 5,000	\$	5,000	\$	5,000
Kathleen Legg	\$ 5.000	\$ 5.000	\$	5.000	\$	5,000

Role of the Board of Trustees, Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

The Role of the Board of Trustees

The Board oversees the management and operations of the Trust. Like most registered investment companies, the day-to-day management and operation of the Trust is performed by various service providers to the Trust, such as Toroso, Impact Shares, distributor, administrator, custodian, and transfer agent, each of which is discussed in greater detail in this SAI. The Board has appointed senior employees of certain of these service providers as officers of the Trust, with responsibility to monitor and report to the Board on the Trust's operations. The Board receives regular reports from these officers and service providers regarding the Trust's operations. For example, the Treasurer provides reports as to financial reporting matters and investment personnel report on the performance of the Trust's portfolios. The Board has appointed a Chief Compliance Officer who administers the Trust's compliance program and regularly reports to the Board as to compliance matters. Some of these reports are provided as part of formal in person Board meetings which are typically held quarterly, in person, and involve the Board's review of, among other items, recent Trust operations. The Board also periodically holds telephonic meetings as part of its review of the Trust's activities. From time to time one or more members of the Board may also meet with management in less formal settings, between scheduled Board meetings, to discuss various topics. In all cases, however, the role of the Board and of any individual Trustee is one of oversight and not of management of the day-to-day affairs of the Trust and its oversight role does not make the Board a guarantor of the Trust's investments, operations or activities.

Board Structure and Leadership

The Board has structured itself in a manner that it believes allows it to perform its oversight function effectively. The Board consists of four Trustees, three of whom are Independent Trustees. The remaining Trustee, Mr. Powell is an "interested person" of the Trust (an "Interested Trustee"). Mr. Powell also serves as Chairman of the Board. The Trustees will meet periodically throughout the year in person and by telephone to oversee the Trust's activities, review contractual arrangements with service providers for the Trust and review the Trust's performance. The Board conducts much of its work through certain standing Committees, each of which is a committee of the whole (except the Audit Committee, as set forth below) and each of whose meetings are chaired by an Independent Trustee. The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Governance Committee and a Compliance Committee, which are discussed in greater detail below. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 the Audit Committee met three times, the Compliance Committee met one time, and Governance Committee met two times.

Audit. Members of the Audit Committee are Monica H. Byrd, Pamela Cytron and Lawrence Jules, each of whom is independent for purposes of the 1940 Act. The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Trust's independent accountants, reviewing with the Trust's independent accountants the plans and results of the audit engagement and the adequacy of the Trust's internal accounting controls, approving professional services provided by the Trust's independent accountants. The Audit Committee is charged with compliance with Rules 205.2(k) and 205.3(c) of Title 17 of the Code of Federal Regulations regarding alternative reporting procedures for attorneys representing the Trust who appear and practice before the SEC on behalf of the Trust. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing and overseeing the valuation of debt and equity securities that are not publicly traded or for which current market values are not readily available pursuant to policies and procedures adopted by the Board. The Board and Audit Committee will use the services of one or more independent valuation firms to help them determine the fair value of these securities. In addition, each member of the Audit Committee meets the current independence and experience requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act. Monica H. Byrd, CPA serves as the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Governance Committee. The Trust's Governance Committee's function is to oversee and make recommendations to the full Board or the Independent Trustees, as applicable, with respect to the governance of the Trust, selection and nomination of Trustees, compensation of Trustees, and related matters. The Governance Committee is also responsible for at least annually evaluating each Trustee and determining whether to recommend each Trustee's continued service in that capacity. The Governance Committee will consider recommendations for Trustee nominees from shareholders sent to the Secretary of the Trust, 5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75225. A nomination submission must include all information relating to the recommended nominee that is required to be disclosed in solicitations or proxy statements for the election of Trustees, as well as information sufficient to evaluate the recommended nominee's ability to meet the responsibilities of a Trustee of the Trust. Nomination submissions must be accompanied by

a written consent of the individual to stand for election if nominated by the Board and to serve if elected by the shareholders, and such additional information must be provided regarding the recommended nominee as reasonably requested by the Governance Committee. Pamela Cytron serves as the Chairperson of the Governance Committee.

Compliance Committee. The Compliance Committee's function is to oversee and assist Board oversight of the Trust's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and to seek to address any potential conflicts of interest between the Trust, Toroso, and Impact Shares in connection with any potential or existing litigation or other legal proceeding relating to securities held by the Trust, Toroso, and/or Impact Shares. Kathleen Legg serves as the Chairperson of the Compliance Committee.

The Trust does not have a lead Independent Trustee. As noted above, the Board's leadership structure features committees each made up of a majority of Independent Trustees. In addition, although the Independent Trustees recognize that having a lead Independent Trustee may in some circumstances help coordinate communications with management and otherwise assist a board in the exercise of its oversight duties, the Independent Trustees believe that because of the relatively small size of the Board, the ratio of Independent Trustees to Interested Trustees and the good working relationship among the Board members, it has not been necessary to designate a lead Independent Trustee.

The Board periodically reviews its leadership structure, including the role of the Chairman. The Board also completes an annual self-assessment during which it reviews its leadership and Committee structure and considers whether its structure remains appropriate in light of the Trust's current operations. The Board believes that its leadership structure, including the current percentage of the Board who are Independent Trustees, is appropriate given its specific characteristics. These characteristics include: (i) the extent to which the work of the Board is conducted through the standing committees; and (ii) the extent to which the Independent Trustees meet as needed, together with their independent legal counsel, in the absence of members of management and members of the Board who are "interested persons" of the Trust.

Board Oversight of Risk Management

The Board's role is one of oversight, rather than active management. This oversight extends to the Trust's risk management processes. These processes are embedded in the responsibilities of officers of, and service providers to, the Trust. For example, Toroso, Impact Shares, and other service providers to the Trust are primarily responsible for the management of the Trust's investment risks. The Board has not established a formal risk oversight committee; however, much of the regular work of the Board and its standing Committees addresses aspects of risk oversight. For example, the Trustees seek to understand the key risks facing the Trust, including those involving conflicts of interest; how management identifies and monitors these risks on an ongoing basis; how management develops and implements controls to mitigate these risks; and how management tests the effectiveness of those controls.

In the course of providing that oversight, the Board receives a wide range of reports on the Trust's activities from Toroso, Impact Shares, and other service providers, including reports regarding the Funds' investment portfolios, the compliance of the Funds with applicable laws, and the Funds' financial accounting and reporting. The Board also meets periodically with the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer to receive reports regarding the compliance of the Funds with the federal securities laws and the Trust's internal compliance policies and procedures, and meets with the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer periodically, including at least annually, to review the Chief Compliance Officer's annual report, including the Chief Compliance Officer's risk-based analysis for the Trust.

The Board's Audit Committee also meets regularly with the Treasurer and Trust's independent registered public accounting firm to discuss, among other things, the internal control structure of the Trust's financial reporting function. The Board also meets periodically with the portfolio manager of the Funds to receive reports regarding the management of the Funds, including its investment risks.

Share Ownership

The following table shows the dollar range of equity securities of the Funds beneficially owned by each Trustee, as of December 31, 2022:

Name	Fund	Dollar Range of Equity Securities of Each Fund Beneficially Owned	Securities of All Funds Beneficially Owned
Ethan Powell	Minority ETF	\$1-\$10,000	\$1-\$10,000
	Women's ETF	\$1-\$10,000	\$1-\$10,000
	Affordable Housing ETF	\$1-\$10,000	\$1-\$10,000

Name	Fund	Dollar Range of Equity Securities of Each Fund Beneficially Owned	Securities of All Funds Beneficially Owned
Winston Lowe ¹	Minority ETF	None	None
	Women's ETF	None	None
	Affordable Housing ETF	None	None
Kathleen Legg ¹	Minority ETF	None	None
	Women's ETF	None	None
	Affordable Housing ETF	None	None

Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity

Trustee Positions

As of December 31, 2022, no Independent Trustee nor any of his or her immediate family members owned beneficially or of record any class of securities of Impact Shares or Distributor (as defined under "Distributor") or any person controlling, controlled by or under common control with any such entities.

Code of Ethics

The Funds, Toroso, Impact Shares and the Funds' principal underwriter, SEI Investments Distribution Co. ("SEI") have each adopted codes of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act that essentially prohibit certain of their personnel, including the Funds' portfolio manager, from engaging in personal investments that compete or interfere with, or attempt to take advantage of a client's, including the Funds', anticipated or actual portfolio transactions, and are designed to assure that the interests of clients, including Funds shareholders, are placed before the interests of personnel in connection with personal investment transactions. Under the codes of ethics of the Funds, Toroso, and Impact Shares, personal trading is permitted by such persons subject to certain restrictions; however, they are generally required to pre-clear most securities transactions with the appropriate compliance officer and to report all transactions on a regular basis.

Anti-Money Laundering Compliance

The Funds and their service providers may be required to comply with various anti-money laundering laws and regulations. Consequently, the Funds and its service providers may request additional information from its Authorized Participants (as defined under "Policy on Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings" in this SAI) to verify the identity of its Authorized Participants. If at any time the Funds believe an Authorized Participant may be involved in suspicious activity or if certain account information matches information on government lists of suspicious persons, the Funds may choose not to establish a new account or may be required to "freeze" an Authorized Participant's account. The Funds and its service providers also may be required to provide a governmental agency with information about transactions that have occurred in an Authorized Participant's account or to transfer monies received to establish a new account, transfer an existing account or transfer the proceeds of an existing account to a governmental agency. In some circumstances, the Funds or its service providers may not be permitted to inform the Authorized Participant that it has taken the actions described above.

Proxy Voting Policies for the Funds

The Board has delegated the responsibility for voting proxies in respect of the Funds' portfolio holdings to Impact Shares, to vote the Funds' proxies in accordance with Impact Shares' Proxy Voting Policy. The Board has approved the Proxy Voting Policy. Pursuant to the Proxy Voting Policy, Impact Shares will vote proxies related to Fund securities in the best interests of the Funds and its shareholders. Impact Shares' Proxy Voting Policy is attached as Appendix A.

The Funds' proxy voting records for the most recent 12-month period ended June 30 will be available (i) without charge, upon request, by calling 844-448-3383 (844-GIVE-ETF) and (ii) on the SEC's website (www.sec.gov). Information as of June 30 each year will generally be available on or about the following August 31.

Mr. Lowe and Ms. Legg resigned as Trustees effective August 31, 2023. Mr. Guillermo Trias, Ms. Monica Byrd, Ms. Pamela Cytron, and Mr. Lawrence Jules do not currently own shares of the Funds.

Policy on Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings

The Trust has adopted a policy regarding the disclosure of information about the Funds' portfolio holdings, which is reviewed on an annual basis. The Board must approve all material amendments to this policy. Each Fund's complete portfolio holdings are publicly disseminated each day the Fund is open for business through financial reporting and news services, including the Funds' publicly accessible Internet website (www.impactetfs.org). Limited information regarding the Funds' portfolio holdings is available daily on (http://www.impactetfs.org) the portfolio composition file ("PCF") and the IOPV file, which contain equivalent portfolio holdings information, will be made available as frequently as daily to the Funds' service providers to facilitate the provision of services to the Funds and to certain other entities ("Entities") in connection with the dissemination of information necessary for transactions in Creation Units, as contemplated by exemptive orders issued by the SEC and other legal and business requirements pursuant to which the Funds create and redeem shares. Entities are generally limited to NSCC members and subscribers to various fee-based services, including large institutional investors ("Authorized Participants") that have been authorized by the Distributor to purchase and redeem Creation Units and other institutional market participants that provide information services. Each business day, Fund portfolio holdings information will be provided to the Distributor or other agent for dissemination through the facilities of the NSCC and/or through other fee-based services to NSCC members and/or subscribers to the fee-based services, including Authorized Participants, and to entities that publish and/or analyze such information in connection with the process of purchasing or redeeming Creation Units or trading shares of the Funds in the secondary market.

Daily access to the PCF and IOPV file is permitted (i) to certain personnel of those service providers that are involved in portfolio management and providing administrative, operational, or other support to portfolio management, including Authorized Participants, and (ii) to other personnel of Toroso, Impact Shares, and the Funds' distributor, administrator, custodian and fund accountant who are involved in functions which may require such information to conduct business in the ordinary course.

Portfolio holdings information may not be provided prior to its public availability ("Non-Standard Disclosure") in other circumstances except where appropriate confidentiality arrangements limiting the use of such information are in effect. Non-Standard Disclosure may be authorized by the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer or, in his absence, any other authorized officer of the Trust if he determines that such disclosure is in the best interests of the Funds' shareholders, no conflict exists between the interests of the Funds' shareholders and those of Toroso, Impact Shares, or Distributor and such disclosure serves a legitimate business purpose. The length of lag, if any, between the date of the information and the date on which the information is disclosed shall be determined by the officer authorizing the disclosure.

Additionally, no compensation or other consideration is received by the Funds, Toroso, Impact Shares or any other person for Non Standard Disclosures. There can be no assurance, however, that the Funds' policies and procedures with respect to the disclosure of portfolio holdings information will prevent the misuse of such information by individuals or firms in possession of such information.

Each Fund is required to file its complete portfolio holdings schedule with the SEC on a quarterly basis. This schedule is filed with each Fund's annual and semi-annual shareholder reports on Form N-CSR for the second and fourth fiscal quarters and as an exhibit to its reports on Form N-PORT for the first and third fiscal quarters. The Funds' Form N-PORT reports are available on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov and may be obtained free of charge by contacting the Funds at the address and phone number written on the cover of this SAI or by visiting our website at www.impactetfs.org.

Book Entry Only System

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") acts as securities depositary for the shares. The shares of the Funds are represented by global securities registered in the name of DTC or its nominee and deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC. Except as provided below, certificates will not be issued for shares.

DTC has advised the Trust as follows: it is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the 1934 Act. DTC was created to hold securities of its participants ("DTC Participants") and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among the DTC Participants in such securities through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of the DTC Participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. DTC Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations, some of whom (and/or their representatives) own DTC. More specifically, DTC is owned by a number of its DTC Participants and by NYSE Arca, Inc. and the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a DTC Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC agrees with and represents to DTC Participants that it will administer its book-entry system in accordance with its rules and by-laws and requirements of law. Beneficial ownership of shares is

limited to DTC Participants, Indirect Participants and persons holding interests through DTC Participants and Indirect Participants.

Ownership of beneficial interests in shares (owners of such beneficial interests are referred to herein as "Beneficial Owners") is shown on, and the transfer of ownership is effected only through, records maintained by DTC (with respect to DTC Participants) and on the records of DTC Participants (with respect to Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners that are not DTC Participants).

Beneficial Owners will receive from or through the DTC Participant a written confirmation relating to their purchase of shares. The laws of some jurisdictions may require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive form. Such laws may impair the ability of certain investors to acquire beneficial interests in shares. Beneficial Owners of shares are not entitled to have shares registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of certificates in definitive form and are not considered the registered holder thereof. Accordingly, each Beneficial Owner must rely on the procedures of DTC, the DTC Participant and any Indirect Participant through which such Beneficial Owner holds its interests, to exercise any rights of a holder of shares. The Trust understands that under existing industry practice, in the event the Trust requests any action of holders of shares, or a Beneficial Owner desires to take any action that DTC, as the record owner of all outstanding shares, is entitled to take, DTC would authorize the DTC Participants to take such action and that the DTC Participants would authorize the Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners acting through such DTC Participants to take such action and would otherwise act upon the instructions of Beneficial Owners owning through them. As described above, the Trust recognizes DTC or its nominee as the owner of all shares for all purposes. Conveyance of all notices, statements and other communications to Beneficial Owners is effected as follows. Pursuant to the Depositary Agreement between the Trust and DTC, DTC is required to make available to the Trust upon request and for a fee to be charged to the Trust a listing of shares holdings of each DTC Participant. The Trust shall inquire of each such DTC Participant as to the number of Beneficial Owners holding shares, directly or indirectly, through such DTC Participant. The Trust shall provide each such DTC Participant with copies of such notice, statement or other communication, in such form, number and at such place as such DTC Participant may reasonably request, in order that such notice, statement or communication may be transmitted by such DTC Participant, directly or indirectly, to such Beneficial Owners. In addition, the Trust shall pay to each such DTC Participant a fair and reasonable amount as reimbursement for the expenses attendant to such transmittal, all subject to applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.

Distributions of shares shall be made to DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., as the registered holder of all shares. DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any such distributions, shall credit immediately DTC Participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in shares as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. Payments by DTC Participants to Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners of shares held through such DTC Participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in a "street name," and will be the responsibility of such DTC Participants. The Trust has no responsibility or liability for any aspects of the records relating to or notices to Beneficial Owners, or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in such shares, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests or for any other aspect of the relationship between DTC and the DTC Participants or the relationship between such DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners owning through such DTC Participants.

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its service with respect to shares at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Trust and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law. Under such circumstances, the Trust shall take action either to find a replacement for DTC to perform its functions at a comparable cost or, if such a replacement is unavailable, to issue and deliver printed certificates representing ownership of shares, unless the Trust makes other arrangements with respect thereto satisfactory to the Exchange.

No dividend reinvestment service is provided by the Trust. However, certain brokers may make a dividend reinvestment service available to their clients. Brokers offering such services may require investors to adhere to specific procedures and timetables in order to participate. Investors interested in such a service should contact their broker for availability and other necessary details.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICES

Toroso Investments LLC ("Toroso") serves as the investment adviser to the YWCA ETF. Toroso, located at 234 West Florida Street, Suite 203, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204, is an SEC-registered investment adviser and a Delaware limited liability company. Toroso was founded in and has been managing investment companies since March 2012 and Toroso is dedicated to understanding, researching and managing assets within the expanding ETF universe. As of September 30, 2023, Toroso had assets under management of approximately \$8.5 billion and served as the investment adviser or sub-adviser for 137 registered funds. Under the investment advisory agreement between the Trust and Toroso with respect to the YWCA ETF (the "Toroso Advisory Agreement"), Toroso is responsible for overseeing the management and business affairs of the YWCA ETF. Toroso will place securities (and financial instrument) trades on behalf of the YWCA ETF and select the broker-dealers to effect those trades. Toroso has no management or oversight responsibilities with respect to either the NAACP Fund or the Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF (the "Affordable Housing ETF").

Pursuant to an amendment to the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement dated September 1, 2023 among Impact Shares, the Trust and Toroso, Impact Shares (the "Sub-Advisory Amendment") serves as the investment sub-adviser to the YWCA ETF and investment adviser to the NAACP ETF and the Affordable Housing ETF. The address of Impact Shares is 5950 Berkshire Lane, Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75225. Impact Shares provides the day-to-day management of each Fund's portfolio of securities and

conducting investment research. Organized in February 2014, Impact Shares is SEC-registered investment adviser. Impact Shares is an ETF sponsor and investment manager that is creating a platform for clients seeking maximum social impact with market returns. As of June 30, 2023, Impact Shares had approximately \$190,000,000 in assets under management.

Impact Shares is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). With respect to the Equity ETFs, Impact Shares intends to make charitable contributions to an Equity ETF's relevant Partner Nonprofit equal to the excess, if any, of Impact Shares' fees and profit share with respect to the relevant Equity ETF over Impact Shares' operating expenses and a reserve for working capital. Impact Shares' intent is to provide financial support to further the causes championed by each Partner Nonprofit. Due to the relatively small size of each Equity ETF, Impact Shares' fees and profit share with respect to each Equity ETF have not yet exceeded its related operating expenses. Accordingly, Impact Shares has not yet made any such charitable contributions. There can be no assurance that Impact Shares' fees and profit share with respect to an Equity ETF will exceed operating expenses in the future. For additional information see "Partner Nonprofits," below.

Impact Shares Advisory Agreement for the NAACP Fund.

NAACP ETF has entered into an investment advisory agreement with Impact Shares (the "Investment Advisory Agreements"), pursuant to which Impact Shares either provides the day-to-day management of the NAACP ETF's portfolio of securities, which includes buying and selling securities for NAACP ETF and conducting investment research, or hires a sub-adviser to do so, subject to Impact Shares' general oversight.

For the services provided to the NAACP ETF under the Investment Advisory Agreement, the NAACP ETF pays the Adviser an annual unitary fee, payable monthly, at the rate of 0.49% of the Fund's Average Daily Managed Assets. "Average Daily Managed Assets" of the NAACP ETF means the average daily value of the total assets of such ETF, less all accrued liabilities of such ETF (other than the aggregate amount of any outstanding borrowings constituting financial leverage). From time to time, the Adviser may waive all or a portion of its fee, although it does not currently intend to do so. Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreements, the Adviser is responsible for substantially all expenses of the NAACP ETF, including the cost of transfer agency, custody, fund administration, legal, audit and other services except for: (i) distribution and service fees payable pursuant to a Rule 12b-1 plan, if any; (ii) taxes and governmental fees, if any, levied against an ETF; (iii) brokerage fees and commissions, and other portfolio transaction expenses incurred by or for an ETF; (iv) expenses of an ETF's securities lending (if any), including any securities lending agent fees, as governed by a separate securities lending agreement; costs, including interest expenses, of borrowing money or engaging in other types of leverage financing; (v) extraordinary expenses, including extraordinary legal expenses, as may arise, including, without limitation, expenses incurred in connection with litigation, proceedings, other claims, contractual arrangements with Partner Nonprofits and the legal obligations of an ETF to indemnify its Trustees, officers, employees, shareholders, distributors, and agents with respect thereto; and (vi) expenses of an ETF which are capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any officer or employee of the Adviser or of any entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with the Adviser, who may also serve as officers, trustees or employees of the Trust shall not receive any compensation from the Trust for their services.

The Adviser has agreed to assume the NAACP ETFs' organization and offering costs. The ETF do not have an obligation to reimburse the Adviser for organization and offering costs paid on their behalf.

The NAACP ETF is a party to contractual arrangements with various parties, including, among others, the NAACP ETF's investment adviser, administrator, distributor, and shareholder servicing agent, who provide services to the NAACP ETF. Shareholders are not parties to, or intended ("third-party") beneficiaries of, any such contractual arrangements, and such contractual arrangements are not intended to create in any individual shareholder or group of shareholders any right to enforce them against the service providers or to seek any remedy under them against the service providers, either directly or on behalf of the NAACP ETF.

Toroso Advisory Agreement for the YWCA Fund

At the Meeting, the shareholders of the YWCA Fund approved an investment advisory agreement with Toroso (the "Toroso Advisory Agreement"). The Toroso Advisory Agreement became effective on the same date. Subject to the terms of the Toroso Advisory Agreement, Toroso is responsible for overseeing the management and business affairs of the YWCA Fund. Toroso also places securities (and financial instrument) trades on behalf of the YWCA Fund and selects the broker-dealers to effect those trades. In addition, Toroso is responsible for general oversight of Impact Shares solely in its capacity as investment sub-adviser to the YWCA Fund.

For the services provided to the YWCA Fund under the Toroso Advisory Agreement, the YWCA Fund pays Toroso an annual unitary fee, payable monthly, at the rate of 0.75% of its average daily net assets. Under a unitary management fee structure, the investment adviser bears all expenses of the YWCA Fund (including transfer agency, custody, fund administration, legal, audit and

other services) with limited exceptions as set forth in the advisory agreement. Under the Toroso Advisory Agreement the following	
-19-	

exceptions apply: interest charges on any borrowings made for investment purposes, dividends and other expenses on securities sold short, taxes, brokerage commissions and other expenses incurred in placing orders for the purchase and sale of securities and other investment instruments, acquired fund fees and expenses, accrued deferred tax liability, distribution fees and expenses paid by the YWCA Fund under any distribution plan adopted pursuant to Rule 12b-1under the 1940 Act, and litigation expenses, and other nonroutine or extraordinary expenses.

The Toroso Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for an initial period of two years, unless sooner terminated. After the initial two-year period, continuation of the Toroso Advisory Agreement from year to year is subject to annual approval by the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. The Toroso Advisory Agreement may be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty (i) by vote of a majority of the Board, (ii) by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the YWCA Fund, on 60 days' written notice to Toroso, or (iii) by Toroso, on 60 days' written notice to the Trust.

Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment for the YWCA Fund

At the Meeting, the shareholders of the YWCA Fund approved an amendment to the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement between the Trust and Impact Shares (the "Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment"). The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment became effective on the same date. Subject to the terms of the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment, Impact Shares became the investment sub-adviser to the YWCA Fund and, in that capacity, will select investments for the YWCA Fund' portfolios consistent with each Equity ETF's investment objectives, policies, and restrictions. In addition, Impact Shares will vote proxies for each of the YWCA Fund. Toroso will retain trading responsibilities for the YWCA Fund. The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment provides that Impact Shares shall exercise due care and diligence and use the same skill and care in providing its services thereunder as it uses in providing services to other investment companies, accounts and customers, but Impact Shares and its affiliates and their respective agents, control persons, directors, officers, employees, supervised persons and access persons shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by the Impact Shares in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of its duties.

The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment will remain in effect for an initial period of two years, unless sooner terminated. Thereafter, continuation of the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment from year to year is subject to annual approval by the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. The Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment may be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty (i) by vote of a majority of the Board, (ii) by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the YWCA Fund, on 60 days' written notice to Impact Shares, or (iii) by Impact Shares, on 60 days' written notice to Toroso.

For its sub-advisory services to the YWCA Fund, Impact Shares is entitled to receive a fee from Toroso, which fee is calculated daily and payable monthly, at an annual rate of 0.02% of the average daily net assets of YWCA Fund. However, as Fund Sponsor, Impact Shares may be required to automatically waive all or a portion of its sub-advisory fee. See "Fund Sponsorship Agreement Between Toroso and Impact Shares" below for more information.

Fund Sponsorship Agreement Between Toroso and Impact Shares for the YWCA Fund

Toroso has entered into a fund sponsorship agreement with Impact Shares (the "Fund Sponsorship Agreement") pursuant to which Impact Shares is a sponsor to the YWCA Fund. Every month, unitary management fees for an Equity ETF are calculated and paid to Toroso, and Toroso retains a portion of the unitary management fees from YWCA Fund. After Toroso has recouped a certain level of costs, Toroso has agreed to pay Impact Shares a portion of any remaining profits generated by the unitary management fee for YWCA Fund.

If the amount of the unitary management fees for the YWCA Fund exceeds the combination of: (i) YWCA Fund's operating expenses (including the sub-advisory fee payable to Impact Shares under the Impact Shares Sub-Advisory Amendment) and (ii) the Toroso-retained amount; that excess amount is considered "remaining profit." In that case, once Toroso has recovered a certain level of costs, Toroso will pay a portion of the remaining profits to Impact Shares. During months when the funds generated by the unitary management fee are insufficient to cover the entire Impact Shares sub-advisory fee, that fee is automatically waived.

The following table shows the total advisory fees paid to Impact Shares by each Equity ETF for the periods indicated. Impact Shares served as investment adviser during each period indicated below.

Fund	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2021	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2022	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2023
Women's ETF	\$ 105,386	\$ 252,236	\$ 254,613
Minority ETF	\$ 91.685	\$ 182.310	\$ 187.355

Investment Advisory Agreement for the Affordable Housing ETF

The Fund has entered into an investment advisory agreement with Impact Shares (the "Investment Advisory Agreement"), pursuant to which Impact Shares either provides the day-to-day management of the Fund's portfolio of securities, which includes buying and selling securities for the Fund and conducting investment research, or hires a sub-adviser to do so, subject to Impact Shares' general oversight. Impact Shares has hired Community Capital Management LLC ("CCM") to act as Sub-Adviser to the Fund.

For the services provided to the Fund under the Investment Advisory Agreement, the Fund pays Impact Shares an annual fee, payable monthly, at the rate of 0.30% of the Fund's Average Daily Managed Assets (as defined below). "Average Daily Managed Assets" of the Fund means the average daily value of the total assets of the Fund, less all accrued liabilities of the Fund (other than the aggregate amount of any outstanding borrowings constituting financial leverage). Impact Shares has voluntarily agreed to waive all advisory fees payable by the Fund under the Investment Advisory Agreement in excess of 0.25% of the average daily managed net assets of the Fund until the Fund's net assets are greater than \$100 million. Impact Shares will pay all expenses incurred by it in connection with its activities under the Investment Advisory Agreement, except such expenses as are assumed by the Fund and such expenses as are assumed by CCM under its sub-advisory agreement.

Under the Investment Advisory Agreement, Impact Shares, among other things: (i) continuously furnishes an investment program for the Fund; (ii) determines the investments to be purchased, held, sold or exchanged by the Fund and the portion, if any, of the assets of the Fund to be held uninvested; (iii) makes changes in the investments of the Fund; (iv) monitors the Fund's performance and considers ways to improve the performance of the Fund and (v) votes, exercises consents and exercises all other rights pertaining to such securities on behalf of the Fund.

The Investment Advisory Agreement provides that in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of the duties involved in the conduct of its position on the part of Impact Shares, Impact Shares shall not be subject to liability to the Fund for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss suffered by the Fund in connection with the matters to which the Investment Advisory Agreement relates.

Additionally, the Investment Advisory Agreement remains in force for an initial two-year period and from year to year thereafter, subject to annual approval by (a) the Board or (b) a "vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the Fund; provided that in either event continuance is also approved by a majority of the Independent Trustees, by a vote cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting such approval. Each Investment Advisory Agreement may be terminated at any time, without payment of any penalty, by vote of the Trust's Board, or by a "vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the Fund, or by Impact Shares, in each case on not more than 60 days' nor less than 30 days' prior written notice to the other party. Each Investment Advisory Agreement will automatically terminate in the event of its "assignment," as defined by the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder, or upon the termination of the relevant Investment Advisory Agreement.

The following table shows the total advisory fees paid to Impact Shares by the Affordable Housing ETF for the period indicated.

	For the	For the Twelve Months			
		ended		ended	
<u>Fund</u>	Jui	ne 30, 2022	Jun	ne 30, 2023	
Affordable Housing ETF	\$	198,418	\$	91,095	

Sub-Adviser

CCM is a registered investment adviser founded in November 1998, with headquarters at 261 N. University Drive, Suite 520, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33324. CCM was originally organized to provide investment advice to other registered investment trusts and separate accounts. As of June 30, 2023, CCM had approximately \$4.2 billion in assets under management.

Elliot Gilfarb, CFA, Head of Fixed Income CCM, serves as Senior Portfolio Manager for the Fund. He is responsible for portfolio management, research and trading. Mr. Gilfarb has been with CCM since 2006.

Andy Kaufman, Chief Investment Officer of CCM, serves as Senior Portfolio Manager of the Fund. He is responsible for portfolio management, research and trading. Mr. Kaufman joined CCM in 2015 as Senior Portfolio Manager. From 2014 to 2015, Mr. Kaufman was a portfolio manager at Mercantil Commercebank and from 2004 to 2014, he was a portfolio manager at BlackRock Financial Management.

Jessica Botelho, Director of CRA & Impact Research at CCM, serves as portfolio manager of the Fund. She is responsible for overseeing and gathering all impact research as well as impact reporting. Ms. Botelho joined CCM in 2013 as an impact research associate. From 2008 to 2012, Ms. Botelho was an assistant vice president, senior client service associate at Acadian Asset Management.

Shonali Pal serves as a portfolio manager of the Affordable Housing ETF. Ms. Pal has been with CCM since 2020. Prior to joining CCM, Ms. Pal worked as an analyst leading deals and assisting clients through all stages of the M&A process at Cross Keys Capital. Prior to that, she was an associate at Bella Private Markets, a research and consulting firm focused on the private capital industry.

Sub-Advisory Agreement

Impact Shares has entered into a Sub-advisory Agreement with CCM (the "Sub-Advisory Agreement"). Under the terms of the Sub-Advisory Agreement, CCM acts as Sub-Adviser to the Fund. In such capacity, CCM, subject to the supervision of Impact Shares and the Board, regularly shall provide the Fund with portfolio management, investment research, advice, and supervision and shall furnish continuously an investment program, consistent with the investment objective and policies of the Fund. CCM shall determine, from time to time, what securities shall be purchased for the Fund, what securities shall be held or sold by the Fund, and what portion of the Fund's assets shall be held uninvested in cash, subject always to the investment objective, policies, and restrictions of the Fund, as each of the same from time to time shall be in effect. To carry out these obligations, CCM can exercise full discretion and act for Impact Shares in the same manner and with the same force and effect as Impact Shares itself might or could do with respect to purchases, sales, or other transactions.

Impact Shares pays CCM, as compensation CCM's services, a fee equal to 0.25% of the Fund's Average Daily Managed Assets. The Fund has no responsibility for any fee payable to CCM.

CCM has contractually agreed to limit the total annual operating expenses (exclusive of fees paid by the Fund pursuant to its distribution plan under Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, taxes, brokerage commissions and other transaction costs, interest payments, acquired fund fees and expenses, extraordinary expenses and dividend expenses on short sales) of the Fund to 0.30% through October 31, 2024. This contract may not be terminated without the action or consent of the Fund's Board of Trustees.

The Fund is a party to contractual arrangements with various parties, including, among others, Impact Shares, administrator, distributor, and shareholder servicing agent, who provide services to the Fund. Shareholders are not parties to, or intended ("third-party") beneficiaries of, any such contractual arrangements, and such contractual arrangements are not intended to create in any individual shareholder or group of shareholders any right to enforce them against the service providers or to seek any remedy under them against the service providers, either directly or on behalf of the Fund.

Neither this prospectus, nor the related SAI, is intended, or should be read, to be or to give rise to an agreement or contract between the Trust or the Fund and any investor, or to give rise to any rights in any shareholder or other person other than any rights under federal or state law.

INFORMATION REGARDING PORTFOLIO MANAGERS

Portfolio Manager of the NAACP ETF

The sole portfolio manager of the NAACP ETF is Ethan Powell of Impact Shares. The following table provides information about funds and accounts, other than the NAACP ETF, for which he is primarily responsible for the day-to-day portfolio management. This information is current as of June 30, 2023.

Ethan Powell

	Total Number of	Total Assets of Accounts (in	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance-	Total Assets of Accounts Subject to a Performance-	
Type of Accounts	Accounts	millions)	Based Fee	Base	ed Fee
Registered Investment Companies	3	\$ 390	0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	16	\$ 418	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	129	\$ 230	0	\$	0

Compensation of the Portfolio Managers of the NAACP ETF

Ethan Powell receives no compensation for his services as portfolio manager of the NAACP ETF.

Portfolio Manager of the YWCA ETF

The portfolio managers of the YWCA ETF are Ethan Powell of Impact Shares, and Qiao Duan and Charles Ragauss of Toroso. The following table provides information about funds and accounts, other than the YWCA Fund, for which the portfolio managers are primarily responsible for the day-to-day portfolio management. This information is current as of June 30, 2023.

Ethan Powell

Type of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts	Total Assets of Accounts (in millions)	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance- Based Fee	of Ac Subje Perfor	Assets counts ect to a mance-ed Fee
Registered Investment Companies	2		<u> Duseu ree</u>	¢.	0
Registered investment Companies	3	\$ 394	U	•	U
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	16	\$ 418	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	129	\$ 234	0	\$	0

Qiao Duan

The of Assessed	Total Number of	As Ac	Total seets of counts (in	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance-	of Ao Subj Perfo	l Assets ccounts ect to a rmance-
Type of Accounts	Accounts	m	illions)	Based Fee	Bas	ed Fee
Registered Investment Companies	17	\$	395	0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0	\$	0	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	0	\$	0	0	\$	0

Charles Ragauss

Type of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts	Tota Assets Accou (in millio	s of ints	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance- Based Fee	of Su Per	otal Assets Accounts abject to a rformance- Based Fee
Registered Investment Companies	67	\$ 4,8		0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0	\$	0	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	0	\$	0	0	\$	0

Compensation of the Portfolio Managers of the YWCA ETF

Ethan Powell receives no compensation for his services as portfolio manager of the YWCA ETF. Qiao Duan and Charles Ragauss are each paid fixed salaries by Toroso. Each of them manager is eligible for an annual bonus at Toroso's discretion, which is based upon the overall profitability of Toroso and the individual's performance.

Portfolio Managers of the Affordable Housing ETF

The portfolio managers of the Fund are Elliot Gilfarb, Andy Kaufman, Jessica Botelho and Shonali Pal. The following table provides information about funds and accounts, other than the Fund, for which each portfolio manager is primarily responsible for the day-to-day portfolio management.

The table below shows information regarding the accounts managed by the portfolio managers of the Affordable Housing ETF. This information is current as of June 30, 2023.

Type of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts	Total Assets of Accounts	Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance- Based Fee	of Acc Subje Perfor	Assets counts ect to a mance-ed Fee
Registered Investment Companies	2	\$3,318,188,816	0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	83	\$1,006,428,242	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	0	\$ 0	0	\$	0

Andy Kaufman

Type of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts	Total Assets of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance- Based Fee	of Acc Subje Perfor	Assets counts ect to a mance-d Fee
Registered Investment Companies	2	\$3,318,188,816	0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	83	\$1,006,428,242	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	0	\$ 0	0	\$	0

Jessica Botelho

Type of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts	Assets of ounts	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance- Based Fee	of Ac Subj Perfo	l Assets ecounts ect to a rmance- ed Fee
Registered Investment Companies	1	 067,134	0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0	\$ 0	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	0	\$ 0	0	\$	0

Shonali Pal

Type of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts	Total Assets of Accounts	Total Number of Accounts Subject to a Performance- Based Fee	Total of Acc Subje Perfor Base	counts ct to a
Registered Investment Companies	2	\$3,318,188,816	0	\$	0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	83	\$1,006,428,242	0	\$	0
Other Accounts	0	\$ 0	0	\$	0

Compensation of the Portfolio Managers of the Affordable Housing ETF

Elliot Gilfarb, Andy Kaufman, Jessica Botelho and Shonali Pal are each paid fixed salaries by CCM. Each portfolio manager is eligible for an annual bonus at the Sub-Advisor's discretion, which is based upon the overall profitability of CCM and the individual's performance.

Conflicts of Interest – Toroso

YWCA ETF only: Toroso's portfolio managers' management of "other accounts" may give rise to potential conflicts of interest in connection with their management of the YWCA ETF investments, on the one hand, and the investments of the other accounts, on the other. The other accounts may have similar investment objectives or strategies as the YWCAETF. A potential conflict of interest may arise as a result, whereby a portfolio manager could favor one account over another. Another potential conflict could include a portfolio manager's knowledge about the size, timing, and possible market impact of trades by a Fund, whereby a portfolio manager could use this information to the advantage of other accounts and to the disadvantage of any Fund. For instance, the portfolio managers may receive fees from certain accounts that are higher than the fees received from the YWCA ETF, or receive a performance-based fee on certain accounts. In those instances, a portfolio manager has an incentive to favor the higher and/or performance-based fee accounts over the YWCA ETF. To mitigate these conflicts, Toroso has established policies and procedures to ensure that the purchase and sale of securities among all

Conflicts of Interest – Impact Shares

Impact Shares, its affiliates or their partners, directors, officers or employees similarly serve or may serve other entities that operate in the same or related lines of business. Accordingly, these individuals may have obligations to investors in those entities or funds or to other clients, the fulfillment of which might not be in the best interests of the Funds. As a result, Impact Shares will face conflicts in the allocation of investment opportunities to the Funds and other funds and clients. In order to enable such affiliates to fulfill their fiduciary duties to each of the clients for which they have responsibility, Impact Shares will endeavor to allocate investment opportunities in a fair and equitable manner which may, subject to applicable regulatory constraints, involve pro rata co-investment by the Funds and such other clients or may involve a rotation of opportunities among the Funds and such other clients.

Impact Shares has adopted policies and procedures that are designed to address potential conflicts that may arise in connection with Impact Shares' operation of the Underlying Indexes, the Funds and other client accounts. Impact Shares has established certain information barriers and other policies to address the sharing of information between different businesses within Impact Shares, including with respect to personnel responsible for maintaining the Indexes and those involved in decision-making for the Funds. In addition, Impact Shares has adopted a Code of Ethics.

Conflicts of Interest - CCM

Affordable Housing ETF only: Investment decisions for the Affordable Housing ETF may be made in conjunction with decisions for other accounts and/or funds with the same strategy. The Sub-Adviser recognizes that potential conflicts may arise with respect to other investment accounts managed by the Sub-Adviser, which may include privately offered funds, separately managed accounts of high net worth customers and institutional investors, and other registered investment companies. These conflicts include, but may not be limited to, differing fee structures, differing investments selected for various vehicles, and inequitable allocation and aggregation trading practices. Registered investment companies, private funds and separate accounts are generally invested pro-rata unless circumstances (e.g., a partially filled order) warrant a different approach. The Sub-Adviser has comprehensive policies and procedures designed to monitor and mitigate any perceived conflicts of interest.

Ownership of Securities

As of June 30, 2023, none of Andy Kaufman, Jessica Botelho and Shonali Pal, the portfolio managers of the Affordable Housing ETF, owned any shares in any of the Funds. As of June 30, 2023, Elliot Gilfarb owned between \$1—\$10,000 of shares in the Affordable Housing ETF and owned no shares in the Women's ETF or the Minority ETF. As of June 30, 2023, neither Qiao Duan or Charles Ragauss, the portfolio managers of the YWCCA ETF, owned any shares in any of the Funds. As of June 30, 2023, Ethan Powell, portfolio manager of the NAACP ETF and YWCA ETF, owned the following dollar range of shares of each Fund:

Fund	Dollar Range of Securities Owned
Women's ETF	\$1 - \$10,000
Minority ETF	\$1 - \$10,000
Affordable Housing ETF	\$1 - \$10,000

ADMINISTRATOR

Tidal ETF Services LLC ("Tidal" or the "Administrator"), an affiliate of Toroso, serves as the Funds' administrator. Tidal is located at 234 West Florida Street, Suite 203, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204. Pursuant to a Fund Administration Servicing Agreement between the Trust and Tidal, Tidal provides the Trust with, or arranges for, administrative, compliance, and management services (other than investment advisory services) to be provided to the Trust and the Board. Pursuant to the Fund Administration Servicing Agreement, officers or employees of Tidal serve as the Trust's principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and chief compliance officer, Tidal coordinates the payment of Fund-related expenses, and Tidal manages the Trust's relationships with its various service providers. As compensation for the services it provides, Tidal receives a fee based on each Fund's average daily net assets, subject to a minimum annual fee. Tidal also is entitled to certain out-of-pocket expenses for the services mentioned above.

Tidal became the Funds' Administrator in August 2023, and Tidal has not received any fees for administrative services to the Funds as of the date of this SAI.

ADMINISTRATOR

SEI Investments Global Funds Services (the "Sub-Administrator"), One Freedom Valley Drive, Oaks, Pennsylvania 19456 serves as

Prior to August, 2023, the Sub-Administrator was the Funds' administrator. The Sub-Administrator received a monthly administration fee from Impact Shares, calculated and assessed in arrears based on the aggregate net assets of the Funds. The Affordable Housing ETF commenced operations after June 30, 2021 and accordingly, three full fiscal years of data with regard to fees paid to the Sub-Administrator on behalf of the Affordable Housing Fund is not available.

The following table shows the total fees paid by Impact Shares on behalf of each Fund to the Sub-Administrator for the periods indicated:

<u>Fund</u>	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2021	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2022	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2023
Women's ETF	\$ 70,000	\$ 70,000	\$ 70,000
Minority ETF	\$ 70,000	\$ 70,000	\$ 70,000
		Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2022	Twelve Months Ended ne 30, 2023
Affordable Housing ETF	_	\$ 58,116	\$ 79,308

DISTRIBUTOR

Under a Distribution Agreement with SEI Investments Distribution Co., One Freedom Valley Drive Oaks, Pennsylvania 19456 (the "Distributor"), shares of the Funds are offered for sale on a continuous basis only in Creation Units, as described in the Prospectus and in the "Purchase and Redemption of Shares" section of this SAI below. Fund shares in amounts less than Creation Units are not distributed by the Distributor. As of June 30, 2023, no fees were paid by a Fund to the Distributor.

The Funds have adopted a Rule 12b-1 Distribution Plan (the "Plan") pursuant to which payments of up to 0.25% may be made as reimbursement or compensation for distribution related activities and other services with respect to the Funds. Under its terms, the Plan remains in effect from year to year, provided such continuance is approved annually by vote of the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. The Plan may not be amended to increase materially the amount to be spent for the services provided by the Distributor without approval by the shareholders of the Funds, and all material amendments of the Plan also require Board approval.

The Plan may be terminated at any time, without penalty, by vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees, or, by a vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Funds (as such vote is defined in the 1940 Act). No payments are expected to be made by the Funds under the Plan during the current fiscal year.

Distribution fees paid to the Distributor in the future may be spent on any activities or expenses primarily intended to result in the sale of the Funds' shares including (but not limited to) to compensate the Distributor, Toroso, Impact Shares, or any of their affiliates, as well as any banks, broker/dealers or other financial institutions for distribution or sales support services rendered, and related expenses incurred, for or on behalf of a Fund. The Distributor may also use any distribution fees paid in the future for the provision of personal services to investors in the Shares and/or the maintenance of shareholder accounts. The Plan is considered a compensation type plan, which means that the Fund pays the Distributor the entire fee, if authorized by the Board in the future, regardless of the Distributor's expenditures. Even if the Distributor's actual expenditures exceed the fee payable under the Plan, if authorized by the Board in the future, at any given time, the Fund will not be obligated to pay more than that fee under the Plan. If the Distributor's actual expenditures are less than the fee payable under the Plan, if authorized by the Board in the future, at any given time, the Distributor may realize a profit from the arrangement.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, 2022 and 2023 no fees were paid to the Distributor by any Fund as compensation for services. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2022 and 2023, the Distributor did not incur expenses on behalf of any Fund in connection with distributions under the Plan.

TRANSFER AGENT

The Bank of New York Mellon ("BNYM") provides transfer agency and dividend disbursing services for the Fund. As part of these services, BNYM maintains records pertaining to the sale, redemption and transfer of Fund shares and distributes the Funds' securities and cash distributions to shareholders.

CUSTODIAN

BNYM is the custodian for the Fund. BNYM is responsible for holding all securities, other investments and cash, receiving and paying for securities purchased, delivering against payment securities sold, receiving and collecting income from investments, making all payments covering expenses and performing other administrative duties, all as directed by authorized persons. BYNM does not exercise any supervisory function in such matters as purchase and sale of portfolio securities, payment of dividends or payment of expenses.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The independent registered public accounting firm for the Funds is Cohen & Company, Ltd. ("Cohen"), located at 1350 Euclid Avenue, Suite 800, Cleveland, Ohio 44115. The independent registered public accounting firm audits and reports on the annual financial statements, reviews certain regulatory reports and U.S. federal income tax returns, and performs other professional accounting, auditing and tax services when engaged to do so. The Financial Highlights for the Funds contained in the Prospectus and the financial statements for the Funds contained in the Trust's 2023 Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2023 are incorporated by reference into this SAI. The information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 was audited by Cohen. Information for the Funds' prior fiscal years or periods was audited by a different independent public accounting firm.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE

Selection of Broker-Dealers: Order Placement

Subject to the overall review of the Board, Impact Shares is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities and other portfolio holdings of the NAACP ETF, and is responsible for selecting the brokers or dealers to be used and for negotiating any commission rates paid. Subject to the overall review of the Board, Toroso is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities and other portfolio holdings of the YWCA ETF and is responsible for selecting the broker or dealer to be used and for negotiating any commission rates paid. Subject to the overall review of the Board, CCM is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities and other portfolio holdings of the Affordable Housing ETF, and is responsible for selecting the broker or dealer to be used and for negotiating any commission rates paid. In underwritten offerings, securities usually are purchased at a fixed price that includes an amount of compensation to the underwriter, generally referred to as the underwriter's concession or discount. On occasion, certain money market instruments may be purchased directly from an issuer, in which case no commissions or discounts are paid.

Toroso, Impact Shares, CCM and their affiliates may manage other accounts that invest in Funds' investments. Although investment decisions for the Funds are made independently from those of such other accounts, investments of the type the Funds may make also may be made on behalf of such other accounts. When the Funds and one or more other accounts are prepared to invest in, or desires to dispose of, the same investment, available investments or opportunities for each are allocated in a manner believed by Toroso, Impact Shares or CCM (as the case may be) to be equitable over time. Toroso, Impact Shares and CCM may (but are not obligated to) aggregate orders, which may include orders for accounts in which Toroso, Impact Shares, or their affiliates have an interest, to purchase and sell securities to obtain favorable execution or lower brokerage commissions, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations. Although Toroso, Impact Shares and CCM believe that, over time, the potential benefits of participating in volume transactions and negotiating lower transaction costs should benefit all participating accounts, in some cases these activities may adversely affect the price paid or received or the size of the position obtained by or disposed of for the Funds. Where trades are aggregated, the investments or proceeds, as well as the expenses incurred, will be allocated by Toroso, Impact Shares or CCM (as the case may be) in a manner designed to be equitable and consistent with their fiduciary duty to the Funds and their other clients (including its duty to seek to obtain best execution of client trades).

Commission Rates; Brokerage and Research Services

Toroso, Impact Shares and CCM seek to obtain "best execution," considering the execution price and overall commission costs paid and other factors. Toroso, Impact Shares or CCM (as the case may be) routes its orders to various broker-dealers for execution at its discretion. Factors involved in selecting brokerage firms include the size, type and difficulty of the transaction, the nature of the market for the security, the reputation, experience and financial stability of the broker-dealer involved, the quality of service, the quality of research and investment information provided and the firm's risk in positioning a block of securities. Within the framework of the policy of obtaining the most favorable price and efficient execution, Toroso, Impact Shares and CCM may consider "brokerage and research services" (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) provided by brokers who effect portfolio transactions with Toroso, Impact Shares, CCM or the Funds. "Brokerage and research services" are services that brokerage houses customarily provide to institutional investors and include statistical and economic data and research reports on particular issuers and industries.

In addition, the investment advisory agreement between the Trust and Toroso relating to the YWCA ETF authorizes Toroso, on behalf of the Fund, in selecting brokers or dealers to execute a particular transaction and in evaluating the best overall terms available, to consider the brokerage and research services (as those terms are defined in Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) provided to the YWCA ETF and/or other accounts over which Toroso or its affiliates exercise investment discretion. The fees under the investment advisory agreement relating to the Funds will not be reduced by reason of the YWCA ETF receiving brokerage and research services. Such services include analyses and reports regarding issuers, industries, economic trends, portfolio strategy, and may effect securities transactions and perform certain functions related thereto. In addition, such services may include advice concerning the advisability of investing in, purchasing or selling securities and the availability of particular securities or buyers or sellers of securities. The research services received from broker-dealers that execute transactions on behalf of the YWCA ETF may be useful to Toroso or Impact Shares in servicing the ETFs as well as all of Toroso's of Impact Shares' accounts and not all of these services may be used in connection with the particular YWCA ETF or funds generating the commissions. Consistent with limits established by the Federal securities laws, the Fund may pay broker-dealer commissions for agency transactions that exceed the amount of commissions charged by other broker-dealers in recognition of their research and brokerage services.

The following table sets forth brokerage commissions paid by each Fund for the periods indicated. The Affordable Housing ETF commenced operations after June 30, 2021 and accordingly, one full fiscal year of data with regard to brokerage commissions paid by the Affordable Housing ETF is not available.

Fund_		e Twelve Months ine 30, 2021		Twelve Months June 30, 2022	Twelve Months June 30, 2023
Women's ETF	\$	1,443.53	\$	1,004.81	\$ 5,322.78
Minority ETF	\$	1,232.27	\$	1,224.10	\$ 4,126.43
		From	the Inception June 30, 202	0	ception through 30, 2023
Affordable Housing ETF	_	- \$		0	\$ 0

DESCRIPTION OF THE FUNDS' SHARES

The Funds are each a series of the Trust, a Delaware statutory trust formed on May 19, 2016. The Trust is authorized to issue an unlimited number of its shares of beneficial interest in separate series and classes of each series. The Trust is not required to hold regular annual shareholder meetings, but may hold special meetings for consideration of proposals requiring shareholder approval, such as changing fundamental policies or upon the written request of 10% of the Trust's shares to replace its Trustees. The Trust's Board is authorized to classify or reclassify the unissued shares of the Trust into one or more separate series of shares representing a separate, additional investment portfolio or one or more separate classes of new or existing series. Shares of all series will have identical voting rights, except where by law certain matters must be approved by the requisite proportion of the shares of the affected series. Each share of any class when issued has equal dividend, liquidation (see "Purchase and Redemption of Shares") and voting rights within the class for which it was issued, and each fractional share has those rights in proportion to the percentage that the fractional share represents a whole share. Shares will be voted in the aggregate except where otherwise required by law and except that each class of each series will vote separately on certain matters pertaining to its distribution and shareholder servicing arrangements.

There are no conversion or preemptive rights in connection with any shares of the Funds. All shares, when issued in accordance with the terms of the offering, will be fully paid and nonassessable.

The shares of the Funds have noncumulative voting rights, which means that the holders of more than 50% of the shares of the Trust can elect 100% of the Trustees if the holders choose to do so, and, in that event, the holders of the remaining shares will not be able to elect any person or persons to the Board.

Description of the Trust

Under Delaware law, shareholders of a statutory trust shall have the same limitation of personal liability that is extended to stockholders of private corporations for profit organized under Delaware law, unless otherwise provided in the trust's governing instrument. The Trust's Agreement and Declaration of Trust (the "Declaration of Trust") provides that shareholders shall not be personally liable to any person in connection with any and all property, real or personal, tangible or intangible, that at such time is owned or held by or for the account of a particular series. Moreover, the Declaration of Trust expressly provides that the shareholders shall have the same limitation of personal liability that is extended to shareholders of a private corporation for profit incorporated in the State of Delaware.

The Declaration of Trust provides that no Trustee, officer, employee or agent of the Trust or any series of the Trust shall be subject in such capacity to any personal liability whatsoever to any person, unless, as to liability to the Trust or its shareholders, the Trustees engaged in willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of the duties involved in the conduct of their offices.

The Trust shall continue without limitation of time subject to the provisions in the Declaration of Trust concerning termination by action of the Trustees, and without any vote of the Trust's shareholders, except as may be required under the 1940 Act.

Trust Matters

The Trust reserves the right to create and issue a number of series shares, in which case the shares of each series would participate equally in the earnings, dividends and assets of the particular series and would vote separately to approve investment advisory agreements or changes in fundamental investment policies, but shares of all series would vote together in the election or selection of Trustees and on any other matters as may be required by applicable law.

Upon liquidation of the Trust or any series, shareholders of the affected series would be entitled to share pro rata in the net assets of their respective series available for distribution to such shareholders.

Shareholder Approval

Other than elections of Trustees, which is by plurality, any matter for which shareholder approval is required by the 1940 Act requires the affirmative "vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities" of the Funds or the Trust at a meeting called for the purpose of considering such approval. For other matters, generally an affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on such matter (assuming a quorum is present) shall be required for approval of such matter.

Information for Shareholders

All shareholder inquiries regarding administrative procedures, including the purchase and redemption of shares, should be directed to the Distributor, SEI Investments Distribution Co., One Freedom Valley Drive, Oaks, Pennsylvania 19456. For assistance, call (855) 799-4757 or visit the Funds' website at www.impactetfs.org.

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

A person who beneficially owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 25% of the voting securities of the Funds or acknowledges the existence of such control may be presumed to control the Funds. A control person could potentially control the outcome of any proposal submitted to the shareholders for approval, including changes to the Funds' fundamental policies or terms of the investment advisory agreement with Toroso or Impact Shares, as the case may be. The Trust does not have information concerning the beneficial ownership of shares nominally held by DTC. To the Trust's knowledge, as of September 29, 2023, no person owned of record or beneficially 25% or more of any of the Funds.

A principal shareholder is any person who owns (either of record or beneficially) 5% or more of any class of outstanding shares of the Funds. The Trust does not have information concerning the beneficial ownership of shares nominally held by DTC. Except as noted in the table below, to the Trust's knowledge, as of September 29, 2023, no persons owned of record or beneficially 5% or more of any of the Funds.

As of September 29, 2023, the Trustees and officers of each Fund as a group owned less than 1% of the outstanding shares of the relevant Fund.

Fund/Class	Shareholder Name & Address	% held as of September 29, 2023	
Impact Shares NAACP Minority Empowerment ETF – Shares of Beneficial Interest	Charles Schwab Special Custody A/C FBO Customers ATTN: Mutual Funds 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105		36%
	National Financial Services LLC 245 Summer Street Boston, MA 02210		22%
	APEX Clearing Corporation 350 N. St. Paul Street, Suite 1300 Dallas, TX 75201		9%
	JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 1111 Polaris Parkway Columbus, OH 43240		5%
Fund/Class	Shareholder Name & Address	% held as of September 29, 2023	
Impact Shares YWCA Women's Empowerment ETF – Shares of Beneficial Interest			32%
	JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 1111 Polaris Parkway Columbus, OH 43240		28%
	National Financial Services LLC 245 Summer Street Boston, MA 02210		16%
	The Norther Trust Company 50 South Lasalle Chicago, IL 60603		5%
	Pershing LLC One Pershing Plaza Jersey City, NJ 07399		5%
Fund/Class Impact Shares Affordable Housing MBS ETF – Shares of Beneficial Interest	Shareholder Name & Address Bank of New York Mellon 240 Greenwich Street New York, NY 10286	% held as of September 29, 2023	37%
	The Norther Trust Company 50 South Lasalle Chicago, IL 60603		26%
	LPL Financial Omnibus Customer Account 4707 Executive Dr San Diego CA 92121		13%

Charles Schwab Special Custody A/C FBO Customers ATTN: Mutual Funds 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105

PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Funds issue and redeem shares only in aggregations of Creation Units. A Creation Unit is comprised of 50,000 shares or such other amount as may be from time to time determined to be in the best interests of a Fund by the President of the Fund. The Board reserves the right to declare a split or a consolidation in the number of shares outstanding of the Funds, and may make a corresponding change in the number of shares constituting a Creation Unit, in the event that the per shares price in the secondary market rises (or declines) to an amount that falls outside the range deemed desirable by the Board.

Purchase and Issuance of Creation Units. The Funds issue and sell shares only in Creation Units on a continuous basis through the Distributor, without a sales load, at their NAV next determined after receipt, on any Business Day (as defined herein), of a purchase order in proper form. A "Business Day" with respect to the Funds is any day on which the Exchange is open for business. Creation Units of shares may be purchased only by or through a DTC Participant that has entered into an Authorized Participant Agreement with the Distributor. Such Authorized Participant will agree pursuant to the terms of such Authorized Participant Agreement on behalf of itself or any investor on whose behalf it will act, as the case may be, to certain conditions, including that such Authorized Participant will make available an amount of cash sufficient to pay the Balancing Amount (as defined below) if required and the Transaction Fee described in the Prospectus. The Authorized Participant may require the investor to enter into an agreement with such Authorized Participant with respect to certain matters, including payment of the Balancing Amount. Investors who are not Authorized Participants must make appropriate arrangements with an Authorized Participant. Investors should be aware that their particular broker may not be a DTC Participant or may not have executed an Authorized Participant Agreement, and that therefore orders to purchase Creation Units of shares may have to be placed by the investor's broker through an Authorized Participant. As a result, purchase orders placed through an Authorized Participant may result in additional charges to such investor. The Funds expect to enter into Authorized Participant Agreements with only a small number of DTC Participants. As described below, at the discretion of Toroso and/or Impact Shares, the Funds may, at times, only accept in-kind purchase orders from Authorized Participants.

Creation Deposit. The consideration for purchase of a Creation Unit of shares of the Funds can consist of cash only (including the appropriate Transaction Fee). However, the Funds may permit or require the in-kind deposit of a designated portfolio of securities ("Deposit Securities") constituting a representative sample of the Underlying Index, along with the Balancing Amount and the appropriate Transaction Fee (collectively, the "Creation Deposit") as consideration for the purchase of a Creation Unit. The "Balancing Amount" will be the amount equal to the differential, if any, between the total aggregate market value of the Deposit Securities and the NAV of the Creation Units being purchased and will be paid to, or received from, the Trust after the NAV has been calculated. Toroso and/or Impact Shares may restrict purchases of Creation Units to be on an in-kind basis at any time and without prior notice, in all cases at Toroso's and/or Impact Shares' discretion.

The Custodian, using information provided by the Sub-Administrator, makes available through the NSCC on each Business Day, either immediately prior to the opening of business on the Exchange or the night before, the list of the names and the required number of shares of each Deposit Security to be included in the current Creation Deposit (based on information at the end of the previous Business Day). Such Creation Deposit is applicable, subject to any adjustments as described below, in order to effect purchases of Creation Units of shares the Funds until such time as the next-announced Creation Deposit composition is made available. The Custodian, using information provided by the Sub-Administrator, will also make available through the NSCC on each Business Day information about the previous day's Balancing Amount.

The identity and number of shares of the Deposit Securities required for a Creation Deposit for the Funds changes as rebalancing adjustments and corporate action events are reflected from time to time by Toroso and/or Impact Shares with a view to the investment objective of the Funds. The composition of the Deposit Securities may also change in response to adjustments to the weighting or composition of the securities constituting the relevant securities index. In addition, the Trust reserves the right to permit or require the substitution of an amount of cash (i.e., a "cash in lieu" amount) to be added to the Balancing Amount to replace any Deposit Security or Deposit Securities which may not be available in sufficient quantity for delivery or for other similar reasons. The adjustments described above will reflect changes, known to Toroso or Impact Shares on the date of announcement to be in effect by the time of delivery of the Creation Deposit, in the composition of the subject index being tracked by the Funds, or resulting from stock splits and other corporate actions.

In addition to the list of names and numbers of securities constituting the current Deposit Securities of a Creation Deposit, on each Business Day, the Balancing Amount effective through and including the previous Business Day, per outstanding share of the Funds, will be made available.

Shares may be issued in advance of receipt by the Trust of all or a portion of the applicable Deposit Securities as described below. In these circumstances, the initial deposit will have a greater value than the NAV of the shares on the date the order is placed in proper form since, in addition to the available Deposit Securities, cash must be deposited in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Balancing Amount, plus (ii) 105% of the market value of the undelivered Deposit Securities (the "Additional Cash Deposit"). An additional amount of cash shall be required to be deposited with the Trust, pending delivery of the missing Deposit Securities to the extent necessary to maintain the Additional Cash Deposit with the Trust in an amount at least equal to 115% of the daily mark-to-market value of the missing Deposit Securities. The Participation Agreement will permit the Trust to buy the missing Deposit Securities at any time. Authorized Participants will be liable to the Trust for the costs incurred by the Trust in connection with any such purchases. These costs will be deemed to include the amount by which the actual purchase price of the Deposit Securities exceeds the market value of such Deposit Securities on the day the purchase order was deemed received by the Distributor plus the brokerage and related transaction costs associated with such purchases. The Trust will return any unused portion of the Additional Cash Deposit once all of the missing Deposit Securities have been properly received by the Custodian or purchased by the Trust and deposited into the Trust. In addition, a Transaction Fee, as listed below, will be charged in all cases. The delivery of shares so purchased will occur no later than the third Business Day following the day on which the purchase order is deemed received by the Distributor.

All questions as to the number of shares of each security in the Deposit Securities and the validity, form, eligibility and acceptance for deposit of any securities to be delivered shall be determined by the Trust, and the Trust's determination shall be final and binding.

Cash Purchase Amount

Creation Units of all Funds may, at the discretion of Toroso and/or Impact Shares, be sold for cash (the "Cash Purchase Amount"). Creation Units are sold at their NAV plus a Transaction Fee, as described below. The Advisor may also restrict purchases of Creation Units to be on a cash-only basis at any time and without prior notice, in all cases at the Advisor's discretion.

Purchase Cut-Off Times

An Authorized Participant may place an order to purchase (or redeem) Creation Units (i) through the Continuous Net Settlement clearing processes of NSCC as such processes have been enhanced to effect purchases (and redemptions) of Creation Units, such processes being referred to herein as the "Clearing Process," or (ii) outside the Clearing Process. Purchase orders placed through the Clearing Process, as well as purchase orders placed outside the Clearing Process, must be received by 4:00 pm, Eastern Time in order to receive that day's closing NAV per share, as set forth in the table below. In all cases purchase/redeem procedures are at the discretion of Toroso and/or Impact Shares and may be changed without notice.

<u>Fund</u>	Creation Cut-Off Time (Eastern Time)
Women's ETF	4:00 p.m. in order to receive that day's closing NAV per Share
Minority ETF	4:00 p.m. in order to receive that day's closing NAV per Share
Affordable Housing ETF	4:00 p.m. in order to receive that day's closing NAV per Share

Purchases through and outside the Clearing Process. To purchase or redeem through the Clearing Process, an Authorized Participant must be a member of NSCC that is eligible to use the Continuous Net Settlement system. For purchase orders placed through the Clearing Process, the Authorized Participant Agreement authorizes the Distributor to transmit through the Funds' transfer agent (the "Transfer Agent") to NSCC, on behalf of an Authorized Participant, such trade instructions as are necessary to effect the Authorized Participant's purchase order. Pursuant to such trade instructions to NSCC, the Authorized Participant agrees to deliver the requisite deposit securities and the Balancing Amount to the Trust, together with the Transaction Fee and such additional information as may be required by the Distributor.

An Authorized Participant that wishes to place an order to purchase Creation Units outside the Clearing Process must state that it is not using the Clearing Process and that the purchase instead will be effected through a transfer of securities and cash directly through DTC. Purchases (and redemptions) of Creation Units settled outside the Clearing Process will be subject to a higher Transaction Fee than those settled through the Clearing Process. The Creation Deposit transfer must be ordered on the Transmittal Date in a timely fashion so as to ensure the delivery of the requisite number of Deposit Securities through DTC to the account of the Funds by no later than 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time of the next Business Day immediately following such Transmittal Date. The cash equal to the Cash Amount must be transferred directly to the Funds through the Federal Reserve Bank wire transfer system in a timely manner so as to be received by the

Funds no later than 2:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the next Business Day immediately following the Transmittal Date. Those persons placing orders outside the Clearing Process should ascertain the deadlines applicable to DTC and the Federal Reserve Bank wire system by contacting the operations department of the broker or depository institution effectuating such transfer.

Rejection of Purchase Orders. The Trust reserves the absolute right to reject a purchase order transmitted to it by the Distributor in respect to the Funds if (a) the order is not in proper form; (b) the purchaser or group of purchasers, upon obtaining the shares ordered, would own 80% or more of the currently outstanding shares of the Funds; (c) the deposit securities delivered are not as specified by Toroso or Impact Shares and neither firm has consented to acceptance of an in-kind deposit that varies from the designated deposit securities; (d) acceptance of the purchase transaction order would have certain adverse tax consequences to the Funds; (e) the acceptance of the purchase transaction order would, in the opinion of counsel, be unlawful; (f) the acceptance of the purchase order transaction would otherwise, in the discretion of the Trust, Toroso, or Impact Shares, as the case may be, have an adverse effect on the Trust or the rights of beneficial owners; (g) the value of a Cash Purchase Amount, or the value of the Balancing Amount to accompany an in-kind deposit, exceeds a purchase authorization limit extended to an Authorized Participant by the custodian and the Authorized Participant has not deposited an amount in excess of such purchase authorization with the custodian prior to the relevant cut-off time for the Funds on the Transmittal Date; or (h) in the event that circumstances outside the control of the Trust, the Distributor, Toroso, and Impact Shares make it impractical to process purchase orders. The Trust shall notify a prospective purchaser of its rejection of the order of such person. The Trust and the Distributor are under no duty, however, to give notification of any defects or irregularities in the delivery of purchase transaction orders nor shall either of them incur any liability for the failure to give any such notification.

Redemption of Creation Units. Shares may be redeemed only in Creation Units at their NAV next determined after receipt of a redemption request in proper form by the Distributor on any Business Day. The Trust will not redeem shares in amounts less than Creation Units. Beneficial owners also may sell shares in the secondary market, but must accumulate enough shares to constitute a Creation Unit in order to have such shares redeemed by the Trust. There can be no assurance, however, that there will be sufficient liquidity in the public trading market at any time to permit assembly of a Creation Unit of shares. Investors should expect to incur brokerage and other costs in connection with assembling a sufficient number of shares to constitute a redeemable Creation Unit.

The Custodian, using information provided by the Sub-Administrator, through the NSCC, makes available prior to the opening of business on the Exchange on each Business Day, the identity of the Fund securities that will be applicable (subject to possible amendment or correction) to redemption requests received in proper form on that day. Fund securities received in redemption may not be identical to Deposit Securities that are applicable to creations of Creation Units. Redemption proceeds for a Creation Unit generally consist of cash; however, the Funds also reserve the right to make the redemptions entirely or partly in the announced Fund securities plus or minus cash in an amount equal to the difference between the NAV of the shares being redeemed, as next determined after a receipt of a request in proper form, and the value of the Fund securities, less a redemption transaction fee.

Redemptions of shares for Fund securities will be subject to compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws, and the Funds reserve the right to redeem Creation Units for cash if the Trust could not lawfully deliver specific Fund securities upon redemptions or could not do so without first registering the Fund securities under such laws. An Authorized Participant or an investor for which it is acting subject to a legal restriction with respect to a particular security included in the Fund securities applicable to the redemption of a Creation Unit may be paid an equivalent amount of cash. This would specifically prohibit delivery of Fund securities that are not registered in reliance upon Rule 144A under the Securities Act to a redeeming investor that is not a "qualified institutional buyer," as such term is defined under Rule 144A of the Securities Act. The Authorized Participant may request the redeeming beneficial owner of the shares to complete an order form or to enter into agreements with respect to such matters as compensating cash payment.

The Funds, however, may suspend the right of redemption and postpone payment for more than seven days: (i) during periods when trading on the Exchange is closed on days other than weekdays or holidays; (ii) during periods when trading on the Exchange is restricted; (iii) during any emergency which makes it impractical for the Funds to dispose of its securities or fairly determine the NAV of the Funds; and (iv) during any other period permitted by the SEC for your protection.

Redemption Cut-Off Times

An Authorized Participant may place an order to redeem Creation Units (i) through the Clearing Process, or (ii) outside the Clearing Process. Redemption orders placed through the Clearing Process, as well as redemption orders placed outside the Clearing Process, must be received by 4:00 pm, Eastern Time in order to receive that day's closing NAV per share, as set forth in the table below. In all cases purchase/redeem procedures are at this discretion of the Advisor and may be changed without notice.

<u>Fund</u>	Redemption Cut-Off Time (Eastern Time)
Women's ETF	4:00 p.m. in order to receive that day's closing NAV per Share
Minority ETF	4:00 p.m. in order to receive that day's closing NAV per Share
Affordable Housing ETF	4:00 p.m. in order to receive that day's closing NAV per Share

Placement of Redemption Orders using the Clearing Process. Orders to redeem Creation Units of the Funds through the Clearing Process must be delivered through an Authorized Participant that is a member of NSCC that is eligible to use the Continuous Net Settlement System. A redemption order must be received by the cut-off times set forth in "Redemption Cut-Off Times" above. All other procedures set forth in the Participant Agreement must be followed in order for you to receive the NAV determined on that day. The requisite cash or Fund securities and the Balancing Amount will be transferred by the third NSCC Business Day following the date on which such request for redemption is deemed received.

Placement of Redemption Orders Outside the Clearing Process. Orders to redeem Creation Units of the Funds outside the Clearing Process must be delivered through a DTC Participant that has executed the Participant Agreement. A DTC Participant who wishes to place an order for redemption of Creation Units of the Funds to be effected outside the Clearing Process need not be a "participating party" under the Authorized Participant Agreement, but such orders must state that the DTC Participant is not using the Clearing Process and that redemption of Creation Units will instead be effected through transfer of Shares directly through DTC. A redemption order must be received by the cut-off times set forth in "Redemption Cut-Off Times" above. The order must be accompanied by the requisite number of shares of the Funds specified in such order, which delivery must be made through DTC to the Custodian no later than 11:00am Eastern Time on the next Business Day immediately following such Transmittal Date ("DTC Cut-Off Time"). All other procedures set forth in the Authorized Participant Agreement must be properly followed. After the Transfer Agent has deemed an order for redemption outside the Clearing Process received, the Transfer Agent will initiate procedures to transfer the requisite cash and, if applicable, Fund securities, which are expected to be delivered within three Business Days following the Transmittal Date on which such redemption order is deemed received by the Transfer Agent.

Transaction Fees. Authorized Participants are charged standard creation and redemption transaction fees ("Transaction Fees") to offset transfer and other transaction costs associated with the issuance and redemption of Creation Units. There is a fixed and a variable component to the total Transaction Fee. A fixed Transaction Fee of \$500 is applicable to each creation or redemption transaction, regardless of the number of Creation Units purchased or redeemed. Creations and redemptions are also subject to an additional variable charge of up to 1% of the net asset value per Creation Unit, inclusive of the standard transaction fee, for (i) in-kind creations or redemptions effected outside the normal Clearing Process, (ii) in whole or partial cash creations, (iii) in whole or partial cash redemptions or (iv) non-standard orders. The variable component is primarily designed to cover non-standard charges, e.g., brokerage, taxes, foreign exchange, execution, market impact and other costs and expenses related to the execution of trades resulting from such transaction. In all cases, the Transaction Fee will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities. The Fund may determine not to charge the variable portion of a Transaction Fee on certain orders when Toroso and/or Impact Shares has determined that doing so is in the best interests of Fund shareholders, e.g., for redemption orders that facilitate the rebalance of the Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order. The variable portion of a Transaction Fee may be higher or lower than the trading expenses incurred by a Fund with respect to the transaction. In addition, purchasers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for payment of the costs of transferring securities to the Fund and redeemers of shares in Creation Units are responsible for the costs of transferring securities from the Fund. Investors who use the services of a broker or other financial intermediary may pay fees for such services.

Continuous Offering. The method by which Creation Units of shares are created and traded may raise certain issues under applicable securities laws. Because new Creation Units of shares are issued and sold by the Funds on an ongoing basis, at any point a "distribution," as such term is used in the Securities Act, may occur. Broker-dealers and other persons are cautioned that some activities on their part may, depending on the circumstances, result in their being deemed participants in a distribution in a manner which could render them statutory underwriters and subject them to the prospectus delivery and liability provisions of the Securities Act. For example, a broker-dealer firm or its client may be deemed a statutory underwriter if it takes Creation Units after placing an order with the Distributor, breaks them down into constituent shares and sells some or all of the shares comprising such Creation Units directly to its customers; or if it chooses to couple the creation of a supply of new shares with an active selling effort involving solicitation of secondary market demand for shares. A determination of whether a person is an underwriter for the purposes of the Securities Act depends upon all the facts and circumstances pertaining to that person's activities. Thus, the examples mentioned above should not be considered a complete description of all the activities that could lead to a categorization as an underwriter. Broker-dealer firms should note that dealers who are not "underwriters" but are participating in a distribution (as contrasted to ordinary secondary market transaction), and thus dealing with shares that are part of an "unsold allotment" within the meaning of section 4(3)(C) of the Securities Act, would be unable to take advantage of the prospectus delivery exemption provided by section 4(3) of the Securities Act. Firms that incur a prospectus-delivery obligation with respect to shares are reminded that under Securities Act Rule 153 a prospectus delivery obligation under Section 5(b)(2) of the Securities Act owed to a national securities exchange member in connection with a sale on the national securities exchange is satisfied by the fact that the Funds' Prospectus is available at the national securities exchange on which the shares of the Funds trade upon request. The prospectus delivery mechanism provided in Rule 153 is only available with respect to transactions on a national securities exchange and not with respect to "upstairs" transactions.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion is a summary of some of the important U.S. federal income tax considerations generally applicable to an investment in a Fund. Your investment may have other tax implications. The discussion reflects provisions of the Code, existing Treasury regulations, rulings published by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), and other applicable authorities, as of the date of this SAI. These authorities may be changed, possibly with retroactive effect, or subject to new legislative, administrative or judicial interpretations. No attempt is made to present a detailed explanation of all U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax law concerns affecting each Fund and its shareholders (including shareholders owning large positions in a Fund), and the discussion set forth herein does not constitute tax advice. Please consult your tax advisor about foreign, federal, state, local or other tax laws applicable to you

Taxation of the Funds

Each Fund intends to elect to be treated and intends each year to qualify and to be eligible to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. In order to qualify for the special tax treatment accorded RICs and their shareholders, a Fund must, among other things:

- (a) derive at least 90% of its gross income for each taxable year from (i) dividends, interest, payments with respect to certain securities loans, and gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies, or other income (including but not limited to gains from options, futures or forward contracts) derived with respect to its business of investing in such stock, securities or currencies and (ii) net income derived from interests in "qualified publicly traded partnerships" (as described below);
- (b) diversify its holdings so that, at the end of each quarter of the Fund's taxable year, (i) at least 50% of the market value of the Fund's total assets consists of cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, securities of other RICs, and other securities limited in respect of any one issuer to a value not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets and not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (ii) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets is invested, including through corporations in which the Fund owns a 20% or more voting stock interest, (x) in the securities (other than those of the U.S. government or other RICs) of any one issuer or of two or more issuers that the Fund controls and that are engaged in the same, similar or related trades or businesses, or (y) in the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships (as described below); and
- (c) distribute with respect to each taxable year at least 90% of the sum of its investment company taxable income (as that term is defined in the Code without regard to the deduction for dividends paid—generally taxable ordinary income and the excess, if any, of net short-term capital gains over net long-term capital losses) and net tax-exempt income, for such year.

In general, for purposes of the 90% gross income requirement described in (a) above, income derived from a partnership will be treated as qualifying income only to the extent such income is attributable to items of income of the partnership which would be qualifying income if realized directly by the RIC. However, 100% of the net income derived from an interest in a "qualified publicly traded partnership" (generally, a partnership (x) the interests in which are traded on an established securities market or are readily tradable on a secondary market or the substantial equivalent thereof, and (y) that derives less than 90% of its income from the qualifying income sources described in paragraph (a)(i) above) will be treated as qualifying income. In general, such entities will be treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes because they meet the passive income requirement under Code Section 7704(c)(2). In addition, although in general the passive loss rules of the Code do not apply to RICs, such rules do apply to a RIC with respect to items attributable to an interest in a qualified publicly traded partnership. Certain ETFs and certain master limited partnerships ("MLPs") in which a Fund may invest may qualify as qualified publicly traded partnerships.

For purposes of meeting the diversification requirement described in (b) above, the term "outstanding voting securities of such issuer" will include the equity securities of a qualified publicly traded partnership. Also, for purposes of the diversification requirement described in (b) above, the identification of the issuer (or, in some cases, issuers) of a particular Fund investment can depend on the terms and conditions of that investment. In some cases, identification of the issuer (or issuers) is uncertain under current law, and an adverse determination or future guidance by the IRS with respect to issuer identification for a particular type of investment may adversely affect a Funds' ability to meet the diversification test in (b) above. If a Fund qualifies as a RIC that is accorded special tax treatment, the Funds will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on income or gains distributed in a timely manner to its shareholders in the form of dividends (including Capital Gain Dividends, as defined below).

If a Fund were to fail to meet the income, diversification or distribution test (described respectively in (a), (b) and (c) above), the Fund could in some cases cure such failure, including by paying a Fund-level tax, paying interest, making additional distributions or disposing of certain assets. If a Fund were ineligible to or otherwise did not cure such failure for any taxable year, or if a Fund were otherwise to fail to qualify as a RIC accorded special tax treatment for such year, the Fund would be subject to tax on its taxable income at corporate rates, and all distributions from earnings and profits, including any distributions of net tax-exempt income and net long-

term capital gains, would be taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. Some portions of such distributions might be eligible for the dividends received deduction in the case of corporate shareholders and to be treated as "qualified dividend income" and thus taxable at the lower net capital gain rate in the case of shareholders taxed as individuals, provided in both cases, the shareholder meets certain holding period and other requirements in respect of such Fund's shares (as described below). In addition, the Fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay substantial taxes and interest and make substantial distributions before requalifying as a RIC that is accorded special tax treatment.

Each Fund intends to distribute at least annually to its shareholders all or substantially all of its investment company taxable income (computed without regard to the dividends-paid deduction) and may distribute its net capital gain (that is, the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss, in each case determined with reference to any loss carryforwards). Any investment company taxable income retained by a Fund will be subject to Fund-level tax at regular corporate rates. A Fund may also retain for investment its net capital gain. If a Fund retains any net capital gain, it will be subject to Fund-level tax at regular corporate rates on the amount retained, but may designate the retained amount as undistributed capital gain in a timely notice to its shareholders who would then, in turn, be (i) required to include in income for U.S. federal income tax purposes, as long-term capital gain, their shares of such undistributed amount, and (ii) entitled to credit their proportionate shares of the tax paid by the Fund on such undistributed amount against their U.S. federal income tax liabilities, if any, and to claim refunds on a properly-filed U.S. tax return to the extent the credit exceeds such liabilities. If a Fund makes this designation, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the tax basis of shares owned by a shareholder of the Fund would be increased by an amount equal to the difference between the amount of undistributed capital gains included in the shareholder's gross income under clause (i) of the preceding sentence and the tax deemed paid by the shareholder under clause (ii) of the preceding sentence. A Fund is not required to, and there can be no assurance the Fund will, make this designation if it retains all or a portion of its net capital gain in a taxable year.

In determining its net capital gain, including in connection with determining the amount available to support a Capital Gain Dividend (defined below), its taxable income and its earnings and profits, a Fund generally may elect to treat part or all of any post-October capital loss (defined as any net capital loss attributable to the portion, if any, of the taxable year after October 31, or if there is no such loss, the net long-term capital loss or net short-term capital loss attributable to any such portion of the taxable year) or late-year ordinary loss (generally, the sum of its (i) net ordinary loss, if any, from the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of property, attributable to the portion of the taxable year after October 31, and its (ii) other net ordinary loss, if any, attributable to the portion, if any, of the taxable year after December 31) as if incurred in the succeeding taxable year.

If a Fund were to fail to distribute in a calendar year at least an amount equal to the sum of 98% of its ordinary income (taking into account certain deferrals and elections) for such year and 98.2% of its capital gain net income for the one-year period ending October 31 of such year, plus any such amounts retained from the prior year, the Fund would be subject to a nondeductible 4% excise tax on the undistributed amounts. For purposes of the required excise tax distribution, a Fund's ordinary gains and losses from the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of property that would otherwise be taken into account after October 31 of a calendar year generally are treated as arising on January 1 of the following calendar year. Also for these purposes, a Fund will be treated as having distributed any amount on which it has been subject to corporate income tax in the taxable year ending within the calendar year. Each Fund intends generally to make distributions sufficient to avoid imposition of the 4% excise tax, although there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so. In that event, such Fund will be liable for the excise tax only on the amount by which it does not meet the foregoing distribution requirement.

A dividend paid to shareholders in January of a year generally is deemed to have been paid by a Fund on December 31 of the preceding year, if the dividend was declared and payable to shareholders of record on a date in October, November or December of that preceding year. Capital losses in excess of capital gains ("net capital losses") are not permitted to be deducted against a Fund's net investment income. Instead, subject to certain limitations, a Fund may carry net capital losses forward to subsequent taxable years to offset capital gains, if any, realized during such subsequent taxable year. Capital loss carryforwards are reduced to the extent they offset current-year net realized capital gains, whether a Fund retains or distributes such gains. Carryforward losses may be carried forward to one or more subsequent taxable years without expiration. Any such carryforward losses will retain their character as short-term or long-term. A Fund's ability to use net capital losses to offset gains may be limited as a result of certain (i) acquisitive reorganizations and (ii) shifts in the ownership of such Fund by a shareholder owning or treated as owning 5% or more of the stock of such Fund. Each Fund's available capital loss carryforwards will be set forth in its annual shareholder report for each fiscal year.

At June 30, 2023, the Funds had the following capital loss carryforwards:

Fund Name	Short-Term Loss		Long-Term Loss		Total
Women's ETF	\$	(369,005)	\$	(371,964)	\$ (740,969)
Minority ETF	\$	(742,487)	\$	(499,474)	\$(1,241,961)
Affordable Housing ETF	\$	(2,106,357)	\$	(616,131)	\$(2,722,488)

Funds Distributions

Distributions are taxable to shareholders even if they are paid from gains earned by a Fund before a shareholder's investment (and thus were included in the price the shareholder paid). Distributions are taxable whether shareholders receive them in cash or reinvest them in additional shares pursuant to DTC's Dividend Reinvestment Service (see "Dividends and Other Distributions" in the Funds' Prospectus).

Each Fund (or broker or other financial intermediary through which you own your shares) will send you information after the end of each calendar year setting forth the amount and tax status of any distributions paid to you by the Fund. Ordinary income dividends and Capital Gain Dividends (defined below) may also be subject to state, local or other taxes.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, distributions of investment income are generally taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. Taxes on distributions of capital gains are determined by how long a Fund owned the investments that generated them, rather than how long a shareholder has owned his or her shares. In general, a Fund will recognize long-term capital gain or loss on investments it has owned (or is deemed to have owned) for more than one year, and short-term capital gain or loss on investments it has owned (or is deemed to have owned) for one year or less. Distributions of net capital gain that are properly reported by a Fund as capital gain dividends ("Capital Gain Dividends") will be taxable to shareholders as long-term capital gains includible in net capital gain and taxed to individuals at reduced rates. The IRS and the Department of the Treasury have issued regulations that impose special rules in respect of Capital Gain Dividends received through partnership interests constituting "applicable partnership interests" under Section 1061 of the Code. Distributions of net short-term capital gain (as reduced by any net long-term capital loss for the taxable year) will be taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. Distributions of investment income reported by a Fund as derived from "qualified dividend income" will be taxed in the hands of individuals at the rates applicable to net capital gain, provided holding period and other requirements are met at both the shareholder and Fund level.

In order for some portion of the dividends received by a Fund shareholder to be "qualified dividend income," a Fund must meet holding period and other requirements with respect to some portion of the dividend-paying stocks in its portfolio and the shareholder must meet holding period and other requirements with respect to the Fund's shares. In general, a dividend will not be treated as qualified dividend income (at either the Funds or shareholder level) (1) if the dividend is received with respect to any share of stock held for fewer than 61 days during the 121-day period beginning on the date which is 60 days before the date on which such share becomes ex-dividend with respect to such dividend (or, in the case of certain preferred stock, 91 days during the 181-day period beginning 90 days before such date), (2) to the extent that the recipient is under an obligation (whether pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property, (3) if the recipient elects to have the dividend income treated as investment income for purposes of the limitation on deductibility of investment interest, or (4) if the dividend is received from a foreign corporation that is (a) not eligible for the benefits of a comprehensive income tax treaty with the United States (with the exception of dividends paid on stock of such a foreign corporation readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States) or (b) treated as a passive foreign investment company.

In general, distributions of investment income reported by a Fund as derived from qualified dividend income will be treated as qualified dividend income by a shareholder taxed as an individual, provided the shareholder meets the holding period and other requirements described above with respect to the Fund's shares. If the aggregate dividends received by a Fund during any taxable year are 95% or more of its gross income (excluding long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), then 100% of such Fund's dividends (other than dividends properly reported as Capital Gain Dividends) will be eligible to be treated as qualified dividend income.

Distributions by the Fund that the Fund properly reports as "section 199A dividends," as defined and subject to certain conditions described below, are treated as qualified real estate investment trust ("REIT") dividends in the hands of non-corporate shareholders. Non-corporate shareholders are permitted a federal income tax deduction equal to 20% of qualified REIT dividends received by them, subject to certain limitations. Very generally, a "section 199A dividend" is any dividend or portion thereof that is attributable to certain dividends received by a RIC from REITs to the extent such dividends are properly reported as such by the RIC in a written notice to its shareholders. A section 199A dividend is treated as a qualified REIT dividend only if the shareholder receiving such dividend holds the dividend-paying regulated investment company shares for at least 46 days of the 91-day period beginning 45 days before the shares become ex-dividend, and is not under an obligation to make related payments with respect to a position in substantially similar or related property. The Fund is permitted to report such part of its dividends as section 199A dividends as are eligible, but is not required to do so. Distributions of income or gain attributable to derivatives with respect to REIT securities, including swaps, will not constitute qualified REIT dividends.

Subject to any future regulatory guidance to the contrary, any distribution of income attributable to qualified publicly traded partnership income from the Fund's investment in publicly traded partnerships will ostensibly not qualify for the deduction that would be available to a non-corporate shareholder were the shareholder to own such publicly traded partnership directly.

Dividends of net investment income received by corporate shareholders of a Fund generally will qualify for the dividends-received deduction generally available to corporations to the extent of the amount of eligible dividends received by such Fund from domestic corporations for the taxable year. A dividend received by a Fund will not be treated as a dividend eligible for the dividends-received deduction (1) if it has been received with respect to any share of stock that a Fund have held for less than 46 days (91 days in the case of certain preferred stock) during the 91-day period beginning on the date which is 45 days before the date on which such share becomes

ex-dividend with respect to such dividend (during the 181-day period beginning 90 days before such date in the case of certain preferred stock) or (2) to the extent that the Funds are under an obligation (pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property. Moreover, the dividends-received deduction may otherwise be disallowed

or reduced (1) if the corporate shareholder fails to satisfy the foregoing requirements with respect to its shares of the applicable Fund or (2) by application of the Code (for instance, the dividends-received deduction is reduced in the case of a dividend received on debt-financed portfolio stock (generally, stock acquired with borrowed funds)).

If a Fund receives dividends from another investment company that qualifies as a RIC and the investment company reports such dividends as qualified dividend income or as eligible for the dividends-received deduction, then such Fund is permitted in turn to report a portion of its distributions as qualified dividend income or as eligible for the dividends received deduction, as applicable, provided the Fund meets holding period and other requirements with respect to shares of the investment company.

A Fund's dividends representing distributions of interest income and capital gains or distributions from entities that are not corporations for U.S. tax purposes will not constitute qualified dividend income to individual shareholders and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction for corporate shareholders. In addition, any distribution of income that is attributable to (i) income received by a Fund in lieu of dividends with respect to securities on loan pursuant to a securities lending transaction or (ii) dividend income received by a Fund on securities it temporarily purchased from a counterparty pursuant to a repurchase agreement that is treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a loan by the Fund, will not constitute qualified dividend income to individual shareholders and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction for corporate shareholders.

The Code generally imposes a Medicare contribution tax of 3.8% on the net investment income of certain individuals, estates and trusts to the extent their income exceeds certain threshold amounts. "Net investment income" generally includes for this purpose, among other things, (i) distributions paid by a Fund, including any capital gain dividends, and (ii) net gain recognized on the sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition of shares of a Fund. Shareholders are advised to consult their tax advisers regarding the possible implications of this additional tax on their investment in a Fund.

Return of Capital Distributions

If a Fund makes a distribution to a shareholder in excess of such Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits in any taxable year, the excess distribution will be treated as a return of capital to the extent of such shareholder's tax basis in its shares, and thereafter as capital gain. A return of capital is not taxable, but it reduces a shareholder's tax basis in its shares, thus reducing any loss or increasing any gain on a subsequent taxable disposition by the shareholder of its shares.

Dividends and distributions on a Fund's shares are generally subject to U.S. federal income tax as described herein to the extent they do not exceed the Fund's realized income and gains, even though such dividends and distributions may economically represent a return of a particular shareholder's investment. Such distributions are likely to occur in respect of shares purchased at a time when a Fund's net asset value reflects either unrealized gains or realized but undistributed income or gains that were therefore included in the price that the shareholder paid. Such distributions may reduce the fair market value of a Fund's shares below the shareholder's cost basis in those shares. As described above, each Fund is required to distribute realized income and gains regardless of whether such Fund's net asset value also reflects unrealized losses.

Tax Implications of Certain Fund Investments

In general, option premiums received by a Fund are not immediately included in the income of the Fund. Instead, the premiums are recognized when the option contract expires, the option is exercised by the holder, or the Fund transfers or otherwise terminates the option (e.g., through a closing transaction). If a call option written by a Fund is exercised and the Fund sells or delivers the underlying stock, the Fund generally will recognize capital gain or loss equal to (a) the sum of the strike price and the option premium received by the Fund minus (b) the Fund's basis in the stock. Such gain or loss generally will be short-term or long-term depending upon the holding period of the underlying stock. If securities are purchased by a Fund pursuant to the exercise of a put option written by it, the Fund generally will subtract the premium received for purposes of computing its cost basis in the securities purchased. Gain or loss arising in respect of a termination of a Fund's obligation under an option other than through the exercise of the option will be short-term gain or loss depending on whether the premium income received by the Fund is greater or less than the amount paid by the Fund (if any) in terminating the transaction. Thus, for example, if an option written by a Fund expires unexercised, the Fund generally will recognize short-term gain equal to the premium received.

Certain covered call writing activities of a Fund may trigger the U.S. federal income tax straddle rules contained primarily in Section 1092 of the Code. Very generally, where applicable, Section 1092 requires (i) that losses be deferred on positions deemed to be offsetting positions with respect to "substantially similar or related property," to the extent of unrealized gain in the latter, and (ii) that the holding period of such a straddle position that has not already been held for the long-term holding period be terminated and begin anew once the position is no longer part of a straddle. Options on single stocks that are not "deep in the money" may constitute qualified

covered calls, which generally are not subject to the straddle rules; the holding period on stock underlying qualified covered calls that are "in the money" although not "deep in the money" will be suspended during the period that such calls are outstanding. Thus, the straddle rules and the rules governing qualified covered calls could cause gains that would otherwise constitute long-term capital gains

to be treated as short-term capital gains, and distributions that would otherwise constitute "qualified dividend income" or qualify for the dividends-received deduction to fail to satisfy the holding period requirements and therefore to be taxed as ordinary income or to fail to qualify for the dividends-received deduction, as the case may be.

In general, 40% of the gain or loss arising from the closing out of a futures contract traded on an exchange approved by the Commodities Futures Trading Commission is treated as short-term gain or loss, and 60% is treated as long-term gain or loss, although certain foreign currency gains and losses from such contracts may be treated as ordinary in character. Also, such contracts held by a Fund at the end of each taxable year (and, for purposes of the 4% excise tax, on certain other dates as prescribed under the Code) are "marked to market" with the result that unrealized gains or losses are treated as though they were realized and the resulting gain or loss is treated as ordinary or 60/40 gain or loss, as applicable.

A Fund's investment in swaps, if any, will generate ordinary income and losses for federal income tax purposes. A Fund's investments in futures and swaps may cause the Fund to recognize income without receiving cash with which to make the distributions necessary to qualify and be eligible for treatment as a regulated investment company and avoid a Fund-level tax. A Fund may therefore need to liquidate other investments, including when it is not advantageous to do so, to meet its distribution requirement. A Fund is not permitted to carry forward any net ordinary losses it realizes in a taxable year to offset ordinary income it realizes in subsequent taxable years.

In addition to the special rules described above in respect of options, futures transactions and swaps, a Fund's derivative transactions, including transactions in options, futures contracts, straddles, securities loan and other similar transactions, including for hedging purposes, will be subject to special tax rules (including constructive sale, mark-to-market, straddle, wash sale, and short sale rules), the effect of which may be to accelerate income to the Fund, defer losses to the Fund, cause adjustments in the holding periods of the Fund's securities, convert long-term capital gains into short-term capital gains, short-term capital losses into long-term capital losses, or capital gains into ordinary income. These rules could therefore affect the amount, timing and character of distributions to shareholders. A Fund may make any applicable elections pertaining to such transactions consistent with the interests of the Fund.

Because these and other tax rules applicable to these types of transactions are in some cases uncertain under current law, an adverse determination or future guidance by the IRS with respect to these rules (which determination or guidance could be retroactive) may affect whether a Fund has made sufficient distributions, and otherwise satisfied the relevant requirements, to maintain its qualification as a regulated investment company and avoid a Fund-level tax.

If a Fund participates in a short sale and, on the date of such short sale, the Fund either (i) does not hold securities substantially identical to those sold short or (ii) has held such substantially identical securities for one year or less, the character of gain or loss realized on such a short sale generally will be short-term. If a Fund participates in a short sale and, on the date of such short sale, the Fund has held substantially identical securities for more than one year, the character of gain realized on such short sale will be determined by reference to the Fund's holding period in the property actually used to close the short sale; the character of loss realized on such short sale generally will be long term, regardless of the holding period of the securities actually used to close such short sale. Because net short-term capital gain (after reduction by any long-term capital loss) is generally taxed at ordinary income rates, a Fund's short sale transactions can increase the percentage of the Fund's gains that are taxable to shareholders as ordinary income.

A Fund's investments in shares of another ETF, a mutual fund or another company that qualifies as a RIC (each, an "investment company") can cause the Fund to be required to distribute greater amounts of net investment income or net capital gain than the Fund would have distributed had it invested directly in the securities held by the investment company, rather than in shares of the investment company. Further, the amount or timing of distributions from a Fund qualifying for treatment as a particular character (e.g., long-term capital gain, eligibility for dividends-received deduction, etc.) will not necessarily be the same as it would have been had the Fund invested directly in the securities held by the investment company.

Some debt obligations with a fixed maturity date of more than one year from the date of issuance (and zero-coupon debt obligations with a fixed maturity date of more than one year from the date of issuance) that are acquired by a Fund will be treated as debt obligations that are issued originally at a discount. Generally, the amount of the original issue discount ("OID") is treated as interest income and is included in a Fund's income (and required to be distributed by the Fund) over the term of the debt security, even though payment of that amount is not received until a later time, upon partial or full repayment or disposition of the debt security.

Some debt obligations with a fixed maturity date of more than one year from the date of issuance that are acquired by a Fund in the secondary market may be treated as having market discount. Generally, market discount is the excess of the stated redemption price of a debt obligation (or in the case of an obligation issued with OID, its "revised issue price") over the purchase price of such obligation. Generally, (i) any gain recognized on the disposition of, and any partial payment of principal on, a debt security having market discount is

treated as ordinary income to the extent the gain, or principal payment, does not exceed the "accrued market discount" on such debt security, (ii) alternatively, a Fund may elect to accrue market discount currently and thus distribute it over the term of the debt security, even though the payment of that amount is not received until a later time, upon partial or full repayment or disposition of the debt security, and (iii) the rate at which the market discount accrues, and thus is included in the Funds' income, will depend upon which of the permitted accrual methods a Fund elects.

Some debt obligations with a fixed maturity date of one year or less from the date of issuance may be treated as having OID or "acquisition discount" (very generally, the excess of the stated redemption price over the purchase price). Generally, a Fund will be required to include the OID or acquisition discount in income (as ordinary income) over the term of the debt security, even though payment of that amount is not received until a later time, upon partial or full repayment or disposition of the debt security. The rate at which OID or acquisition discount accrues, and thus is included in a Fund's income, will depend upon which of the permitted accrual methods the Funds elect.

Some preferred securities may include provisions that permit the issuer, at its discretion, to defer the payment of distributions for a stated period without any adverse consequences to the issuer. If a Fund owns a preferred security that is deferring the payment of its distributions, the Fund may be required to report income for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of any such deferred distribution even though the Fund has not yet actually received the cash distribution.

If a Fund holds the foregoing kinds of obligations, or other obligations subject to special rules under the Code, it may be required to pay out as an income distribution each year an amount which is greater than the total amount of cash interest the Funds actually received.

Such distributions may be made from the cash assets of the Fund or, if necessary, by liquidation of portfolio securities (including at a time when it may not be advantageous to do so). The Fund may realize gains or losses from such liquidations. In the event a Fund realizes net long-term or short-term capital gains from such transactions, its shareholders may receive a larger Capital Gain Dividend or ordinary dividend, respectively, than they would in the absence of such transactions.

Investments in high-yield debt obligations (known as "junk") or other distressed debt obligations that are at risk of or in default present special tax issues for a Fund investing in or holding such securities. Tax rules are not entirely clear about issues such as whether or to what extent a Fund should recognize market discount on a debt obligation, when the Funds may cease to accrue interest, OID or market discount, when and to what extent a Fund may take deductions for bad debts or worthless securities and how a Fund should allocate payments received on obligations in default between principal and income. These and other related issues will be addressed by a Fund as necessary, in order to seek to ensure that it distribute sufficient income to preserve its eligibility for treatment as a RIC and does not become subject to U.S. federal income or excise tax.

A portion of the OID paid or accrued on certain high-yield discount obligations owned by a Fund may not be deductible to the issuer and will instead be treated as a dividend paid by the issuer for purposes of the dividends-received deduction. In such cases, if the issuer of the obligation is a domestic corporation, dividend payments by a Fund may be eligible for the dividends-received deduction to the extent of the deemed dividend portion of such OID.

Very generally, where a Fund purchases a bond at a price that exceeds the redemption price at maturity – that is, at a premium — the premium is amortizable over the remaining term of the bond. In the case of a taxable bond, if a Fund makes an election applicable to all such bonds it purchases, which election is irrevocable without consent of the IRS, the Fund reduces the current taxable income from the bond by the amortized premium and reduces its tax basis in the bond by the amount of such offset; upon the disposition or maturity of such bonds acquired on or after January 4, 2013, the Fund is permitted to deduct any remaining premium allocable to a prior period.

A Fund may invest directly or indirectly in residual interests in real estate mortgage investment conduits ("REMICs") (including by investing in residual interests in collateralized mortgage obligations with respect to which an election to be treated as a REMIC is in effect) or equity interests in taxable mortgage pools ("TMPs"). Under a notice issued by the IRS in October 2006 and Treasury regulations that have yet to be issued but may apply retroactively, a portion of a Fund's income (including income allocated to a Fund from a pass-through entity) that is attributable to a residual interest in a REMIC or an equity interest in a TMP (referred to in the Code as an "excess inclusion") will be subject to U.S. federal income tax in all events. This notice also provides, and the regulations are expected to provide, that excess inclusion income of a RIC will be allocated to shareholders of the RIC in proportion to the dividends received by such shareholders, with the same consequences as if the shareholders held the related interest directly. As a result, a Fund investing in such interests may not be a suitable investment for charitable remainder trusts. See "Tax-Exempt Shareholders" below.

In general, excess inclusion income allocated to shareholders (i) cannot be offset by net operating losses (subject to a limited exception for certain thrift institutions), (ii) will constitute unrelated business taxable income ("UBTI") to entities (including a qualified pension plan, an individual retirement account, a 401(k) plan, a Keogh plan or other tax-exempt entity) subject to tax on UBTI, thereby potentially requiring such an entity that is allocated excess inclusion income, and otherwise might not be required to file a tax return, to file a tax return and pay tax on such income, and (iii) in the case of a non-U.S. shareholder, will not qualify for any reduction in U.S. federal withholding tax. A shareholder will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such inclusions notwithstanding any exemption from such income tax otherwise available under the Code.

Any transactions by a Fund in foreign currencies, foreign currency-denominated debt obligations or certain foreign currency options, futures contracts or forward contracts (or similar instruments) may give rise to ordinary income or loss to the extent such income or loss results from fluctuations in the value of the foreign currency concerned. Such ordinary income treatment may accelerate Fund distributions to shareholders and increase the distributions taxed to shareholders as ordinary income. Any net ordinary losses so created cannot be carried forward by a Fund to offset income or gains earned in subsequent years.

Any equity investments by a Fund in certain "passive foreign investment companies" ("PFICs") could potentially subject the Fund to a U.S. federal income tax (including interest charges) on distributions received from the PFIC or on proceeds received from the disposition of shares in the PFIC. This tax cannot be eliminated by making distributions to Fund shareholders. However, a Fund may elect to avoid the imposition of that tax. For example, a Fund may elect to treat a PFIC as a "qualified electing fund" (i.e., make a "QEF election"), in which case such Fund will be required to include its share of the PFIC's income and net capital gains annually, regardless of whether it receives any distribution from the PFIC. A Fund also may make an election to mark the gains (and to a limited extent losses) in such holdings "to the market" as though it had sold and repurchased its holdings in those PFICs on the last day of the Fund's taxable year. Such gains and losses are treated as ordinary income and loss. The QEF and mark-to-market elections may accelerate the recognition of income (without the receipt of cash) and increase the amount required to be distributed by the Funds to avoid taxation. Making either of these elections therefore may require a Fund to liquidate other investments (including when it is not advantageous to do so) to meet its distribution requirement, which also may accelerate the recognition of gain and affect a Fund's total return. Dividends paid by PFICs will not be eligible to be treated as "qualified dividend income." Because it is not always possible to identify a foreign corporation as a PFIC, a Fund may incur the tax and interest charges described above in some instances.

A Fund's income from or its gains or proceeds in respect of the disposition of its investments in foreign countries may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed by such countries. These withholding and other taxes will decrease a Fund's yield on the securities subject to such taxes. Tax treaties between certain countries and the U.S. may reduce or eliminate such taxes.

In addition, certain of a Fund's derivatives transactions and investments in foreign currency-denominated debt instruments as well as any of a Fund's transactions in foreign currencies or its hedging activities are likely to produce a difference between a Fund's book income and the sum of its taxable income and net tax-exempt income (if any). If a Fund's book income exceeds the sum of its taxable income (including net realized capital gains) and net tax-exempt income (if any), the distribution (if any) of such excess generally will be treated as (i) a dividend to the extent of the Fund's remaining earnings and profits (including earnings and profits arising from tax-exempt income), (ii) thereafter, as a return of capital to the extent of the recipient's basis in its shares, and (iii) thereafter, as gain from the sale or exchange of a capital asset. If a Fund's book income is less than the sum of its taxable income and net tax-exempt income (if any), the Fund could be required to make distributions exceeding book income to qualify as a RIC that is accorded special tax treatment.

Backup Withholding

Each Fund (or a broker or other financial intermediary through which shares are held) generally is required to withhold and remit to the U.S. Treasury a percentage of the taxable distributions and redemption proceeds paid to any individual shareholder who fails to properly furnish the Fund (or intermediary) with a correct taxpayer identification number ("TIN"), who has under-reported dividend or interest income, or who fails to certify to the Fund (or intermediary) that he or she is not subject to such withholding. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld may be credited against the shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the appropriate information is furnished to the IRS.

Sale or Exchange of Fund Shares

The sale or exchange of Fund shares may give rise to a gain or loss to the shareholder. In general, any gain or loss realized upon a taxable disposition of shares will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the shares have been held for more than 12 months. Otherwise, the gain or loss on the taxable disposition of Fund shares will be treated as short-term capital gain or loss. However, any loss realized upon a taxable disposition of shares held for six months or less will be treated as long-term, rather than short-term, to the extent of any Capital Gain Dividends received (or deemed received) by the shareholder with respect to those shares. In addition, all or a portion of any loss realized upon a taxable disposition of Fund shares will be disallowed under the "wash-sale" rule of the Code if other substantially identical shares of the Funds are purchased within 30 days before or after the disposition. In such a case, the basis of the newly purchased shares will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss.

Shareholders may be entitled to offset their Capital Gain Dividends with capital loss from other sources. The Code contains a number of statutory provisions affecting the circumstances under which capital loss may be offset against capital gain and limiting the use of loss from certain investments and activities. Accordingly, shareholders that have capital losses are urged to consult their tax advisers. Upon the exchange of Fund shares, the applicable Fund or, in the case of shares purchased through an intermediary, the intermediary may be

required to provide you and the IRS with cost basis and certain other related tax information about the Fund shares you exchanged. See the Prospectus for more information.

Tax Shelter Reporting Regulations

Under Treasury regulations, if a shareholder recognizes a loss of \$2 million or more for an individual shareholder or \$10 million or more for a corporate shareholder, the shareholder must file with the IRS a disclosure statement on Form 8886. Direct holders of portfolio securities are in many cases excepted from this reporting requirement, but under current guidance, shareholders of a RIC are not excepted. Future guidance may extend the current exception from this reporting requirement to shareholders of most or all RICs. The fact that a loss is reportable under these regulations does not affect the legal determination of whether the taxpayer's treatment of the loss is proper. Shareholders should consult their tax advisers to determine the applicability of these regulations in light of their individual circumstances.

Non-U.S. Shareholders

Distributions by a Fund to shareholders that are not "U.S. persons" within the meaning of the Code ("foreign shareholders") properly reported by the Fund as (1) Capital Gain Dividends, (2) short-term capital gain dividends, and (3) interest-related dividends, each as defined and subject to certain conditions described below, generally will not be subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax.

In general, the Code defines (1) "short-term capital gain dividends" as distributions of net short-term capital gains in excess of net long- term capital losses, and (2) "interest-related dividends" as distributions from U.S. source interest income of types similar to those not subject to U.S. federal income tax if earned directly by an individual foreign shareholder, in each case to the extent such distributions are properly reported as such by the Fund in a written notice to shareholders.

The exceptions to withholding for Capital Gain Dividends and short-term capital gain dividends do not apply to (A) distributions to an individual foreign shareholder who is present in the United States for a period or periods aggregating 183 days or more during the year of the distribution and (B) distributions attributable to gain that is treated as effectively connected with the conduct by the foreign shareholder of a trade or business within the United States under special rules regarding the disposition of U.S. real property interests ("USRPI") as described below. The exception to withholding for interest-related dividends does not apply to distributions to a foreign shareholder that (A) has not provided a satisfactory statement that the beneficial owner is not a U.S. person, (B) to the extent that the dividend is attributable to certain interest on an obligation if the foreign shareholder is the issuer or is a 10% shareholder of the issuer, (C) that is within certain foreign countries that have inadequate information exchange with the United States, or (D) to the extent the dividend is attributable to interest paid by a person that is a related person of the foreign shareholder and the foreign shareholder is a controlled foreign corporation. A Fund is permitted to report such part of its dividends as interest-related or short-term capital gain dividends as are eligible, but is not required to do so. In the case of shares held through an intermediary, the intermediary may withhold even if a Fund reports all or a portion of a payment as an interest-related or short-term capital gain dividend to shareholders. Foreign shareholders should contact their intermediaries regarding the application of these rules to their accounts. Distributions by a Fund to foreign shareholders other than Capital Gain Dividends, short-term capital gain dividends, and interest-related dividends (e.g., dividends attributable to dividend and foreign-source interest income or to short-term capital gains or U.S. source interest income to which the exception from withholding described above does not apply) are generally subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax at a rate of 30% (or lower applicable treaty rate). Foreign shareholders should contact their intermediaries regarding the application of these rules to their accounts.

A foreign shareholder is not, in general, subject to U.S. federal income tax on gains (and is not allowed a deduction for losses) realized on the sale of shares of a Fund unless (i) such gain is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business carried on by such holder within the United States, (ii) in the case of an individual holder, the holder is present in the United States for a period or periods aggregating 183 days or more during the year of the sale and certain other conditions are met, or (iii) the special rules relating to gain attributable to the sale or exchange of USRPIs apply to the foreign shareholder's sale of shares of the Fund (as described below).

Foreign shareholders with respect to whom income from a Fund is effectively connected with a trade or business conducted by the foreign shareholder within the United States will, in general, be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the income derived from the Fund at the graduated rates applicable to U.S. citizens, residents or domestic corporations, whether such income is received in cash or reinvested in shares of the Funds and, in the case of a foreign corporation, may also be subject to a branch profits tax.

If a foreign shareholder is eligible for the benefits of a tax treaty, any effectively connected income or gain will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net basis only if it is also attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by the shareholder in the United States. More generally, foreign shareholders who are residents in a country with an income tax treaty with the United States may obtain different tax results than those described herein and are urged to consult their tax advisers.

Special rules apply to distributions to certain foreign shareholders from a RIC that is a qualified investment entity ("QIE") because it is either a "U.S. real property holding corporation" ("USRPHC") or former USRPHC or would be a USRPHC absent certain exclusions from the definition of USRPIs. Very generally, a USRPHC is a domestic corporation that holds USRPIs — USRPIs are defined generally as any interest in U.S. real property or any equity interest in a USRPHC or former USRPHC — the fair market value of which, during specified testing periods, equals or exceeds 50% of the sum of the fair market values of the corporation's USRPIs, interests in real property located outside the United States and other assets. None of the Funds generally expect that it will be a USRPHC or would be a USRPHC but for the operation of the special exceptions referred to above, and thus does not expect these special tax rules to apply. In order to qualify for any exemption from withholding described above (to the extent applicable) or for lower withholding tax rates under applicable income tax treaties, or to establish an exemption from backup withholding, a foreign shareholder must comply with applicable certification requirements relating to its non-U.S. status (including, in general, furnishing an IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E or substitute form). Foreign shareholders should contact their tax advisers in this regard.

A foreign shareholder may be subject to state and local tax and to the U.S. federal estate tax in addition to the U.S. federal tax on income referred to above.

Tax-Exempt Shareholders

Under current law, a RIC serves to "block" (that is, prevent the attribution to shareholders of) unrelated business taxable income ("UBTI") from being realized by tax-exempt shareholders. Notwithstanding this "blocking" effect, a tax-exempt shareholder could realize UBTI by virtue of its investment in a RIC if shares in that RIC constitute debt-financed property in the hands of the tax-exempt shareholder within the meaning of Code Section 514(b).

A tax-exempt shareholder may also recognize UBTI if a RIC recognizes excess inclusion income derived from direct or indirect investments in residual interests in REMICS or equity interests in TMPs if the amount of such income recognized by the RIC exceeds the RIC's investment company taxable income (after taking into account deductions for dividends paid by the RIC).

In addition, special tax consequences apply to charitable remainder trusts ("CRTs") that invest in RICs that invest directly or indirectly in residual interests in REMICs or equity interests in TMPs. Under legislation enacted in December 2006, a CRT (as defined in section 664 of the Code) that realizes any UBTI for a taxable year must pay an excise tax annually of an amount equal to such UBTI. Under IRS guidance issued in October 2006, a CRT will not recognize UBTI as a result of investing in a RIC to the extent it recognizes "excess inclusion income." Rather, if at any time during any taxable year a CRT (or one of certain other tax-exempt shareholders, such as the United States, a state or political subdivision, or an agency or instrumentality thereof, and certain energy cooperatives) is a record holder of the RIC and that RIC recognizes "excess inclusion income," then the RIC will be subject to a tax on that portion of its "excess inclusion income" for the taxable year that is allocable to such shareholders at the highest federal corporate income tax rate. The extent to which this IRS guidance remains applicable in light of the December 2006 legislation is unclear. To the extent permitted under the 1940 Act, a RIC may elect to specially allocate any such tax to the applicable CRT, or other shareholder, and thus reduce such shareholder's distributions for the year by the amount of the tax that relates to such shareholder's interest in the RIC.

CRTs and other tax-exempt investors are urged to consult their tax advisers concerning the consequences of investing in the Funds.

Shareholder Reporting Obligations With Respect to Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts

Shareholders that are U.S. persons and own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of a Fund could be required to report annually their "financial interest" in the Fund's "foreign financial accounts," if any, on FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts ("FBAR"). Shareholders should consult a tax adviser, and persons investing in a Fund through an intermediary should contact their intermediary, regarding the applicability to them of this reporting requirement.

Other Reporting and Withholding Requirements

Sections 1471-1474 of the Code and the U.S. Treasury and IRS guidance issued thereunder (collectively, "FATCA") generally require the Funds to obtain information sufficient to identify the status of each of their shareholders under FATCA or under an applicable intergovernmental agreement (an "IGA") between the United States and a foreign government. If a shareholder fails to provide the requested information or otherwise fails to comply with FATCA or an IGA, a Fund may be required to withhold under FATCA at a rate of 30% with respect to that shareholder on ordinary dividends it pays. The IRS and the Department of Treasury have issued proposed regulations providing that these withholding rules will not be applicable to the gross proceeds of a sale of shares or Capital Gain Dividends a Fund pays. If a payment by a Fund is subject to FATCA withholding, the Fund or its agent is required to withhold even if such payment would otherwise be exempt from withholding under the rules applicable to foreign shareholders described above (e.g., short-term capital

Each prospective investor is urged to consult its tax adviser regarding the applicability of FATCA and any other reporting requirements with respect to the prospective investor's own situation. Persons investing in a Fund through an intermediary should contact their intermediary regarding the application of this reporting and withholding regime to their investments in the Fund.

Creation and Redemption of Creation Units

An Authorized Participant that purchases Creation Units in exchange for cash, portfolio securities or a combination thereof is generally expected to recognize a gain or a loss on the exchange. The gain or loss generally will be equal to the difference between the market value of the Creation Units at the time and the sum of the cash paid by the Authorized Participant and the Authorized Participant's aggregate basis in any securities surrendered by the Authorized Participant. An Authorized Participant that redeems Creation Units for cash and/or portfolio securities generally will recognize a gain or loss equal to the difference between the Authorized Participant's basis in the Creation Units surrendered and the sum of the cash received by the Authorized Participant and the aggregate market value of any securities received by the Authorized Participant. In certain cases, however, the IRS may assert that a loss realized upon an exchange of securities for Creation Units cannot be deducted currently under the rules governing "wash sales," or on the basis that there has been no significant change in economic position. Authorized Participants exchanging securities should consult their own tax adviser with respect to whether or when a loss might be deductible.

Gain or loss recognized by an Authorized Participant upon a purchase of Creation Units in exchange for Component Securities may be capital or ordinary gain or loss depending on the circumstances. Any capital gain or loss realized upon a purchase of Creation Units in exchange for Component Securities generally will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the securities have been held for more than one year. Any capital gain or loss realized upon a redemption of Creation Units generally will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the Creation Units have been held for more than one year. Otherwise, such capital gain or loss generally will be treated as short-term capital gain or loss. Authorized Participants should consult their own tax adviser with respect to the tax treatment to them of any creation or redemption transaction. Substantial Share Purchases by Authorized Participants

A Fund has the right to reject an order for a purchase of shares of the Fund if the purchaser (or group of purchasers) would, upon obtaining the shares so ordered, own 80% or more of the outstanding shares of the Fund and if, pursuant to Section 351 of the Code, the Funds would have a basis in the securities different from the market value of such securities on the date of deposit. Each Fund also has the right to require information necessary to determine beneficial share ownership for purposes of the 80% determination.

Shares Purchased Through Tax Qualified Plans

Special tax rules apply to investments through defined contribution plans and other tax-qualified plans or tax-advantaged arrangements. Shareholders should consult their tax advisers to determine the suitability of shares of a Fund as an investment through such plans and arrangements and the precise effect of an investment on their particular tax situation.

General Considerations

The U.S. federal income tax discussion set forth above is for general information only. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisers regarding the specific U.S. federal tax consequences of purchasing, holding, and disposing of shares of the Funds, as well as the effects of state, local, foreign and other tax law and any proposed tax law changes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Funds' audited financial statements for the fiscal period ended June 30, 2023, including the notes thereto and the report thereon of Cohen & Company, Ltd, the Funds' Independent registered public accounting firm, included in the Funds' annual shareholder report for the year ended June 30, 2023 (the "2022 Annual Report") are incorporated by reference into this SAI. No other parts of the 2023 Annual Report are incorporated by reference.

APPENDIX A — IMPACT SHARES CORP PROXY VOTING POLICY

Proxy Voting and Class Actions

Background

Rule 206(4)-6 under Advisers Act requires each registered investment adviser that exercises proxy voting authority with respect to Client Securities to do the following:

- Adopt and implement written policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that Impact Shares votes Client Securities
 in the Clients' best interests. Such policies and procedures must address the manner in which Impact Shares will resolve
 material conflicts of interest that can arise during the proxy voting process.
- Disclose to Clients how they may obtain information from Impact Shares about how Impact Shares voted with respect to their Securities.
- Describe to Clients Impact Shares' proxy voting policies and procedures and, upon request, furnish a copy of the policies and procedures.

Risks

• Impact Shares would violate its fiduciary duty to clients if it failed to properly develop proxy voting policies and procedures.

Policy

General

Impact Shares exercises proxy voting authority on behalf of Clients. It is Impact Shares' policy generally to vote against any management proposals that Impact Shares believes could prevent companies from realizing their maximum market value or would insulate companies and/or management from accountability to shareholders or prudent regulatory compliance.

Impact Shares has retained Institutional Shareholder Services Inc. ("ISS") to provide proxy voting services. Impact Shares' proxy voting guidelines have been provided to ISS for purposes of rendering those services.

Impact Shares may refrain from voting proxies at its discretion.

Conflicts of Interest

Impact Shares must act as a fiduciary when voting proxies on behalf of its Clients. In that regard, Impact Shares seeks to avoid possible conflicts of interest in connection with proxy voting. Examples of a conflict of interest include:

- Impact Shares provides investment advice to an officer or director of an issuer. Impact Shares receives a proxy solicitation from that issuer or from a competitor of that issuer.
- Impact Shares or an affiliate has a financial interest in the outcome of a proxy vote, such as when Impact Shares is asked to vote on a change in Rule 12b-1 fees paid by a mutual fund to investment advisers, including Impact Shares
- An issuer or some other third party offers Impact Shares or an Employee compensation in exchange for voting a proxy in a particular way.
- An Employee, or a member of an Employee's household, has a personal or business relationship with an issuer. Impact Shares receives a proxy solicitation from that issuer.

Guidelines

Business Operations

Impact Shares generally will vote in favor of proposals that are a standard and necessary aspect of business operations and that Impact Shares believes will not typically have a significant negative effect on the value of the investment. Such proposals include, but are not limited to:

• Name changes;

- Election of directors:
- Ratification of auditors:
- Maintaining current levels of directors' indemnification and liability;
- Increase in authorized shares (common stock only) if there is no intention to significantly dilute shareholders' proportionate interest; and
- Employee stock purchase or ownership plans.

Change in Status and Other Matters

Proposals that change the status of the corporation, its individual securities, or the ownership status of the securities will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. Changes in status include proposals regarding:

- Mergers, acquisitions, restructurings;
- Reincorporation; and
- Changes in capitalization.

Impact Shares will typically vote against any proposal that has a negative impact on its investment.

Voting on Social Matters

Impact Shares' mission is to facilitate positive corporate social behavior through alignment of capital with specific desired corporate social outcomes. Impact Shares may, at times, submit shareholder resolutions that further fund specific social outcomes and vote shares in line with those outcomes. In line with that mission Impact Shares believes that well-managed companies are attentive to social impacts, and take appropriate steps to measure, manage, and disclose policies, programs, and performance with respect to social impacts. Impact Shares will generally support proposals that request that companies undertake reasonable efforts to measure, manage, and report on their social impacts, including impacts throughout their supply chains. Corporations have a variety of impacts on society including, but not limited to, the following categories:

Diversity. Companies that have strong diversity policies and programs and those that disclose the performance and success of those programs are, we believe, less vulnerable to disruptions as a result of workplace strife, exceptional turnover, costly lawsuits and reputational damage.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request disclosure of a company's workforce diversity data, pay ratios by demographic categories and those that request that companies expand their equal employment opportunity statement to include sexual orientation and gender identity and/or expression.

Gender Equality. Impact Shares believes that companies that take affirmative steps to attract, retain and promote women and to advance gender equality and women's empowerment in the workplace and beyond are better-managed companies.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request the adoption of board committee charter language that would require the company to consider female and/or minority candidates in every director search and those that seek increased disclosure of policies and program aimed at promoting gender equality and empowerment.

Human Rights. Impact Shares believes it is the responsibility of businesses to protect and uphold human rights in their own operations and throughout their supply chain. It is also critical for companies to manage human rights as failing to do so can result in costly legal and reputational risk.

- Repressive Regimes: Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies adopt policies regarding, or increase reporting around any involvement with, repressive regimes or conflict zones.
- Human Trafficking: Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies adopt policies to prohibit human (labor and sex) trafficking or programs to educate employees and consumers about related risks.
- Negative Images & Stereotyping: Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies develop
 policies governing the use of images of indigenous peoples, women or other identifiable groups in their advertising, brand, or
 mascots.

Indigenous Peoples' Welfare. Impact Shares believes a company's effectiveness in managing indigenous relations is an indicator of management quality. Failing to address indigenous relations issues when they arise can pose reputational, regulatory and financial risks to corporations.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals requesting that companies develop policies or programs to prevent or mitigate harm to indigenous peoples, or that request that companies report on their impacts to indigenous peoples.

Labor Relations. Impact Shares believes that constructive labor management relations are an indicator of sound management and a sustainable business model.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies adopt policies or codes of conduct that address employees' rights to collective bargaining or other labor relations issues that protect employees' rights.

Product Safety and Integrity. Impact Shares believes that a company's failure to comply with regulatory requirements and problems associated with product safety or product promotion can have far-reaching, negative consequences for consumers and therefore can result in reputational and financial damage to the company. Product recalls, often as a result of product safety issues, in particular, can cause considerable harm to a company's revenues, reputation, profitability, publicity and brand integrity.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies take steps to improve product-related safety performance or report on product safety and integrity issues. These issues may include, but are not limited to, privacy & data security, toxicity, animal welfare, nanomaterials, and product recalls.

Workplace Health and Safety. Impact Shares believes a company's commitment to workplace and employee safety is a key component of its overall sustainability profile. The costs of workplace accidents can grow quickly when factoring in workers' compensation payments, legal expenses associated with litigation, regulatory penalties and compliance costs.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies adopt policies to address workplace health and safety and increase disclosure of workplace safety practices and performance.

Community. Impact Shares believes that companies that are committed to having a positive impact on the communities in which they operate tend to be better-managed companies. Not only are these companies better able to avoid reputational and legal risks that can result from negative community relations – positive community relations are often an indication of superior management.

• Impact Shares will generally vote in favor of proposals that request that companies adopt policies or report on practices that govern community engagement.

Other Issues

Impact Shares will vote on issues that are not covered in these Guidelines in accordance with the Principles outlined above.

Proxy Admin Procedures

In general, because Impact Shares will vote proxies according to the Proxy Administrator's Proxy Voting Guidelines.

Impact Shares may determine that it is in the best interests of its Clients to depart from Proxy Administrator's Proxy Voting Guidelines when voting a particular proxy. In this case, the CIO or Portfolio Manager will decide how to vote the proxy, providing the CCO with the reason for deviating from Proxy Administrator's Proxy Voting Guidelines and identifying any known conflicts of interest. The CCO will also conduct a review to determine if there are any conflicts of interest related to the issuer. If no material conflicts of interest are identified, the CCO will direct the Proxy Administrator to vote the proxy as recommended by the CIO or Portfolio Manager. If a material conflict of interest is identified, deviation from the Proxy Administrator's recommendation will not be permitted.

Class Actions

Impact Shares' standard advisory contract authorizes Impact Shares to direct Client participation in class actions. Impact Shares shall determine appropriate participation in any class action.

Impact Shares generally does not file class actions for accounts or funds which have been closed. Additionally, Impact Shares usually does not serve as the lead plaintiff in class actions because the costs of such participation typically exceed any extra benefits that accrue to lead plaintiffs.

Proxy Admin

- The Chief Compliance Officer directs the Proxy Administrator to vote Client proxies according to their Proxy Voting Guidelines. Any deviations from these recommendations must be approved in writing by the CCO.
- Any proxy that potentially involves other conflicts of interest must be escalated to the Chief Compliance Officer for review and determination of any further actions that may be appropriate.
- Where the Chief Compliance Officer determines there is a potential for a material conflict of interest regarding a proxy, the Chief Compliance Officer will consult with the portfolio manager and a determination will be made as to whether one or more of the following steps will be taken: (i) inform Clients of the material conflict and Impact Shares' voting decision; (ii) discuss the proxy vote with Clients; (iii) fully disclose the material facts regarding the conflict and seek the Clients' consent to vote the proxy as intended; and/or (iv) seek the recommendations of an independent third party.

The Chief Compliance Officer will document the steps taken to evidence that the proxy vote was in the best interest of Clients and not the product of any material conflict. Such documentation will be maintained in accordance with required recordkeeping procedures.